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Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana General Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Basis) (continued) 
Fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 

Expenditures (continued) Nouinstructional services: Food service operations Comnmuity service operations Facility acquisition and construction Total noninstructional services Total expenditures Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures Other financing sources (uses) Proceeds from the sale of buildings Operating transfers in Operating transfers out Total other financing sources Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over (under) expenditures and other uses Fund balance at beginning of year Fund balance at end of year 

Variance Favorable Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

(2,251,762) (1,057,814) 1,193,948 
950,600 1,612,050 950,672 518,522 72 (1,093,528) 240,100) (117,600) 122,500 2.322.550 1,351,594 (970.956) 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana 
General Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Basis) (continued) 

Expenditures (continued) Plant services: Salaries Materials and supplies Building operations Employee benefits Other expenditures Total plant services 

Fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 

Student transportation services: Salaries: Transportation supervision Bus drivers Bus aides Mechanics Substitute bus driver salaries Bus insurance Materials and supplies Gasoline and diesel Employee benefits Other expenditures Total student transportation services 
Central services: Salaries Materials and supplies Employee benefits Other expenditures Total central services 

Variance Favorable Budget Actual (Unfavorable 

5,368,988 5,444,589 (75,601) 
69,350 1,432,300 130,050 191,000 70,000 150,450 590,100 255,000 308,210 18.350 

69,467 1,425,619 128,838 195,832 60,437 150,463 607,271 243,328 290,280 23.867 

(117) 6,681 1,212 (4,832) 9,563 (13) (17,171) 11,672 17,930 (5,517) 3,214,810 3,195,402 19,408 
363,450 213,000 81,760 53.700 

368,166 207,858 77,826 43,425 
(4,716) 5,142 3,934 10.275 711,910 697,275 14,635 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana General Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Basis) (continued) 
Fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 

Expenditures (continued) General administration: Salaries Legal services Audit services Tax assessment and collection services Employee benefits Other expenditures Total general administration School administration: Salaries: Principals School secretaries and clerks Employee benefits Other expenditures Total school administration Business services: Salaries: Fiscal services Purchasing services Warehousing and distribution services Printing and graphic art services Materials and supplies Employee benefits Other expenditures Total business services 

Variance Favorable Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

761,305 781,054 (19,749) 
2,011,200 627,000 572,090 20,000 

2,011,877 627,986 622,608 13.461 
(677) (986) (50,518) 6,539 3,230,290 3,275,932 (45,642) 

295,750 54,950 49,400 130,345 81,867 111,850 44,150 

292,635 54,905 49,395 130,118 90,816 105,561 172.014 

3,115 45 5 227 (8,949) 6,289 127.864) 
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768,312 895,444 (127,132) 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana General Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Basis) (continued) Fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 

Expenditures (continued) Vocational education programs: Salaries Materials and supplies Employee benefits Other expenditures Total vocational education programs Other instructional programs (e.g., ROTC band. etc.): Salaries Materials and supplies Employee benefits Other expenditures Total other instructional programs Total instructional services Support services: Student support services: Salaries Materials and supplies Employee benefits Other expenditures Total student support services Instructional staff services: Salaries Materials and supplies Employee benefits Other expenditures Total instructional staff services 

Variance Favorable Budget Actual (Unfavorable 

416,450 315,639 100,811 
352,374 127,220 76,710 15.235 

336,250 105,032 77,284 10.264 
16,124 22,188 (574) 4.971 571,539 528,830 42,709 35,523,175 34,885,552 637,623 

1,202,460 35,350 324,250 19.200 
1,182,079 26,855 318,932 30,771 

20,381 8,495 5,318 11,571 1,581,260 1,558,637 22,623 
275,080 76,300 61,210 29,630 

360,687 67,435 62,879 28.864 
(85,607) 8,865 (1,669) 766 442,220 519,865 (77,645) 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana General Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Basis) (continued) 

Expenditures Instructional services: Regular programs: Salaries: Kindergarten teachers Elementary teachers Secondary teachers Aides Substitute teachers Sabbatical leave Instructional supplies Employee benefits Other expenditures Total regular programs 

Fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 

Special education programs: Salaries: Teachers Aides Materials and supplies Employee benefits Other expenditures Total special education programs 
Adult/continuing education programs: Salaries Materials and supplies Employee benefits Other expenditures Total adult/continuing education programs 

Variance Favorable Budt~et Actual (Unfavorable 

26,553,890 26,148,445 385,445 
5,176,500 910,500 8,700 1,659,480 17.450 

5,118,518 916,294 7,700 1,661,115 16.240 
57,982 (5,794) 1,000 (1,635) 1.210 7,772,630 7,719,867 52,763 

190,657 10,850 24,584 2.575 
130,858 3,792 37,209 912 

59,799 7,058 (12,625) 1,663 
37 
228,666 172,771 55,895 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana General Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Basis) 

Revenues Local sources: Ad valorem taxes: Constitutional taxes Renewable taxes Other than school taxes F',arnings on deposits Other local revenue Total local sources 

Fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 

State and federal sources: State equalization State revenue sharing Professional improvement program Restricted grant-in-aid State contribution for teacher retirement Total state and federal sources Total revenues 

Variance Favorable Actual (Unfavorable~ Bu 
1,084,000 $ 5,045,500 187,500 340,000 

1,154,018 $ 5,372,865 192,304 506,506 
70,018 327,365 4,804 166,506 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Special Revenue Funds 
June 30, 1996 

Special Revenue Funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. These funds, for the most part, are established for specific educational purposes and funded through the U. S. Depart- ment of Education or the Louisiana State Department of Education. The School Board ks centrally located in Northeast Louisiana and acts as a regional ftscal agent for the State Department of Education for many educational programs. 
Supplemental Salaries Sales Tax Funds The 1% Sales Tax Fund is established to collect, record and disburse funds for the payment of supplementary salaries and benefits to School Board personnel. The fund is used to pay a determined amount on a monthly basis with any remaining balance disbursed on December 31 with a supplemental check. 
The .5% Sales Tax Fund is set up to collect, record and disburse funds for the payment of supplemental salaries to School Board personnel. Employees share in the following percentage: certified personnel--88%, and noncertified personnel--I 2% of total collections. The fund is used to pay this salary supplement on a monthly basis with any remaining balance disbursed on June 30 with a supplemental check. Utility Reimbursement Fund The Utility Reimbursement Fund was established by the School Board ti'om the proceeds of Louisiana Power & Light refunds. The School Board has designated these funds for utilization in the area of energy conservation. 
Air Conditioning Redemption Fund The Air Conditioning Redemption Fund was established in August 1975, with the issuance of $3,300,000 in certificates of indebtedness. The resources generated from this issuance were used to air condition the schools. The air conditioning was completed and the funds expended in 1978. 
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Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Notes to Combined Financial Statements (continued) 
14. Interfund Transfers Operating transfers for the year ended June 30, 1996 were as follows: 
General Fund 
Special Revenue Funds: District #1 Sales Tax School Food Service Other Federal Programs Other State Grants Total Special Revenue Funds Total 

Transfers In Transfers Out $ 518,522 $ 117,600 
- 402,877 6,303 - 32,287 27.939 34,242 435.164 $ 552,764 $ 552,764 

Effective July 1, 1995, the School Board transferred the balances of the Self Insurance Investment Fund, a special revenue fund, to the Self Insurance Internal Service Fund. The change was made to more clearly reflect the funds available to meet the School Board's obligations under its self- funding of potential workers' compensation and general liability insurance losses (see Note 2.0.). 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Special Revenue Fund - Even Start Family Literacy Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (GAAP Basis) 

Revenues State and federal sources Federal grants Total revenues 

Fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 

Expenditures Instructional services: Special programs Support services: Instructional staff services Business services Plant services Student transportation services Facility acquisition Total expenditures Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures Other financing sources Operating transfer out Total other financing sources Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over (under) expenditures and other uses Fund balance at beginning of year Fund balance at end of year 

58 

Variance Favorable Budget Actual (Unfavorable 
912,071 $ 912,071 800,851 $ 800,851 (111,220) (111,220) 
643,955 557,979 85,976 132,927 2,000 46,842 45,000 

121,640 9,777 25,290 47,343 9,060 6,535 
11,287 (7,777) 21,552 (2,343) 2,525 879,784 768,564 111,220 

32,287 32,287 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Notes to Combined Financial Statements continued) 
12. Reconciliation of the Budgetary Basis and the GAAP Basis The School Board approves formal budgets for all governmental and proprietary funds. With the exception of the General Fund, all budgets are prepared on the GAAP basis. For financial reporting purposes, expenditures are recognized as incurred and encumbrances are not reported as resources used. However, for budgetary reporting purposes in the General Fund, resource uses are recognized when expenditures and encumbrances are incurred. Thus, the General Fund budget is not prepared on the GAAP basis. The following summary reconciles General Fund operations for the year from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis of reporting. 
Revenues Revenues on budgetary basis and GAAP basis General Fund $ 50,992,815 Expenditures Expenditures and encumbrances on budgetary basis 52,050,629 Encumbrances outstanding at June 30, 1995 269,266 Encumbrances outstanding at June 30, 1996 (30,806) Expenditures on GAAP basis 52,289.089 Excess (deficit) of revenues over expenditures on GAAP basis (1,296,274) Other financing sources (uses) Operating transfers in Operating transfers out Proceeds from the sale of buildings Total other financing sources Excess of revenues over expenditures and other uses on GAAP basis Fund balance--June 30, 1995 on GAAP basis Fund balance--June 30, 1996 on GAAP basis 

13. Litigation and Contingencies 

518,522 (117,600) 950.672 

The School Board is a defendant in several lawsuits. Management for the School Board believes thai the potential claims against the School Board not covered by insurance have been adequately accrued for at June 30, 1996, and therefore would not materially affect the School Board's financial position. See Note 2.0. for discussion of the School Board's accounting pohcy for its self-insurance plans. 
33 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Notes to Combined Financial Statements (continued) 
11. Due From/To Other Funds 
Individual balances due from/to other funds at June 30, 1996 were as follows: 

General Fund Special Revenue Funds: Supplemental Salaries Sales Tax - .5% District #1 Sales Tax Air Conditioning Redemption Utility Reimbursement School Food Service IDEA-B 101-476 Title I Even Start Family Literacy Other Federal Programs State Grants Local Grants Debt Service Internal Service 
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Due From Other Funds Due To Other Funds $ 1,573,823 $1,743,559 439,550 1,452,929 4,460 106,446 18,557 101,240 9,549 86,638 13,634 
115.000 

280,807 439,550 300,000 55,243 38,921 232,490 111,490 557,765 150,421 7,026 94 4.460 $ 3,921,826 $ 3,921,826 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Notes to Combined Financial Statements (continued) 
10. General Long-Term Obligations (continued) Principal and interest are due in total, by year, as follows 

Year Ended Principal Interest June 30 Payments Payments Total 
1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002-2006 Total 

$ 3,120,000 $ 3,315,000 1,775,000 1,905,000 2,040,000 12.685.000 
1,542,808 1,368,120 1,189,640 1,081,365 963,255 2.639.945 
$ 4,662,808 4,683,120 2,964,640 2,986,365 3,003,255 15.324.945 $ 24,840,000 $ 8,785,133 $ 33.625.133 The following is a summary of the long-term obligations transactions for the year ended June 30 1996: 

Long-term obligations at July 1, 1995 Deductions (compensated absences shown net) Long-term obligations at June 30, 1996 

Compensated Bonded Absences Debt Certificate of Indebtedness Total 
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Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Notes to Combined Financial Statements (continued) 
10. General Long-Term Obligations (continued) excluding the City of Monroe. At June 30, 1996, the statutory limit was $76,494,559. At June 30, 1996, the School Board had accumulated $2,853,798 in the Debt Service Funds to pay debt serv- ice requirements on the general long-term obligation bonds, thus creating a remaining debt margin of $73,640,761. In August 1993, the School Board issued $1,500,000 Certificates of Indebtedness, Series 1993 at a rate of 4.3% to finance the purchase of school buses and other equipment. These certificates, which will be repaid from the future excess of revenues over expenditures in the District #1 Sales Tax Fund, are due in semiannual installments through September 1997, and are included with general obligation bonds payable. The following shows the changes in general obligation bonds and certificates of indebtedness payable: Interest Outstanding Outstanding Rate Total July I, June 30, on Unpaid Future 1995 Borrowings Payments 1996 Debt Interest General obligation bonds: 5.1%-6.25% issued 5/1/78; due 1978-1998 7.6%-11.0% issued 811186: due 1987-2006 4.'~%-6.7% issued 9/1/91: due 1992-2006 Certificates of indebtedness: 4.3% issued 8/31/91 due 1994-1998 Total 

$ 3,560,000 $ - $1,120,000 $ 2,440,000 5.6% $ 206,920 1,240,000 21.815.000 - 1,240,000 5.9%~ 200.000 21.615.000 6.7% 26,615,000 2,560,000 24,055,000 
1.150.000 - 365.000 785,000 $ 27,765,000 $ - $ 2,925,000 $ 24,840,000 

8,544,135 8,751,055 
4.3% 34,078 $ 8,785,133 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Notes to Combined Financial Statements (continued) 
8. Retirement Systems (continued) The School Board's contributions to the LSERS for the years ending June 30, 1996, 1995, and 1994, were $299,194, $272,687, and $287,023, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. 9. Other Postemployment Benefits 
As permitted by Louisiana Revised Statutes, the School Board provides certain continuing health care and life insurance benefits for certain retired employees through the State group insurance plan. Retired School Board employees are eligible for these benefits if they reached normal retirement age, as defined under the applicable retirement system (see Note 8), while working for the School Board. The School Board recognizes the cost of providing these benefits (the School Board's portion of premiums) as an expenditure when the monthly premiums are due. The cost of retiree benefits totaled $1,541,272 during fiscal 1996; approximately 717 retirees are eligible to receive benefits under this plan. The; School Board offers a deferred compensation plan for part-time and substitute employees under the provision of Internal Revenue Service Code 457 (Deferred Compensation Plan). Employees contribute 7.5% of their compensation to the Deferred Compensation Plan. The School Board does not contribute to the Deferred Compensation Plan. At June 30, 1996, the Plan had assets which approximated market value of $129,226. The assets in the Plan remain the property of the School Board until paid or made available to participants, subject only to the claims of the School Board's general creditors. The School Board does not believe that is has any liability for losses under the Plan but does have a duty of due care that would be required of an ordinary prudent investor. 
10. General Long-Term Obligations All School Board bonds are obligations of East Ouachita Parish School District or West Ouachita Parish School District, with maturities from 1996 to 2006 and interest rates from 5.6% to 6.7%. All principal and interest requirements are funded in accordance with Louisiana law by the annual ad valorem tax levy on taxable property within the respective taxing districts. In accordance with Louisiana Revised Statute 39:562, the School Board is legally restricted from incurring long-term bonded debt in excess of 35% of the total assessed value of all property in the Parish of Ouachita, 
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Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Special Revenue Fund - Supplemental Salaries Sales Tax - .5% Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (GAAP Basis) 

Revenues Local sources: Sales and use tax Earnings on deposits Total revenues Expenditures Instructional services Regular programs Special education programs Vocational programs Other instructional 

Fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 

Support services: Pupil support services School administration Business sen,ices Plant sen, ices Student transportation services Toted expenditures Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 
Other financing uses Operating transfer out Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over (under) expenditures and other uses 
Fund balance at beginr~ing of year Fund balance at end of year 

Variance Favorable Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 
5,493,000 5,487,750 (5,250) 
3,597,695 953,880 32,700 7,500 
161,100 265,550 15,000 153,975 162,600 

4,122,535 993,460 31,024 12,323 
156,186 250,524 15,018 195,894 157,106 

(524,840) (39,580) 1,676 (4,823) 4,914 15,026 (18) (41,919) 5,494 5,350,000 5,934,070 (584,070) 143,000 (446,320) (589,320) 
143,000) - 143,000 



District School Other #1 Food IDEA-B Even Federal State Local Total 

$ 25.797 $ 2.2(19 $ 19,368 $ 123,485 $ 15,322 $ 28,953 $ 65.036 3.8(16 17,140 354,667 78,169 58,642 439.55(I 55.243 38,921 232,490 111.490 557,765 1 24,328 $ 3,240 $ 242,702 29,376 6,574 3,144,179 50,421 7,026 2,173,713 27,486 - 27,486 530.383 61.258 75,429 710,642 204,981 645,360 231,611 16,840 5,588,080 2,431,261 
-- 134.525 94.038 134,525 94,038 - 1,030,241 - 1,069,338 - 162,582 - 145,389 

363,108 

171,586 363,257 726,813 545,321 116,303 118,806 1,468,336 343,386 446,320 -- 118.978 - - - 19 60,359 47,151 226,507 165,978 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Special Revenue Funds Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances Fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 (With Comparative Totals for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1995) Supplemental Salaries Sales Tax 
Revenues Local sources: Sales and use taxes Earnings on deposits Cash payments for meals Other State and federal sources: State equalization Other state support Federal grants Other federal support Total revenues Expenditures Instructional se.rvices: Regular progxams Special education programs Special programs Vocational programs Adult/continning education Other instructional programs Support services: Pupil support services Instructional staff support services School administration General administration Business services Plant services Student transportation services NonJnstructional services: Food service operations Facility acquisition and construction Debt service: Principal Interest Other Total expenditures Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures Other financing uses Operating transfers in Operating transfers out Total other financing uses Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over (under) expenditures and other uses Fund balances at beginning of year Residual equity, transfers out Fund balances at end of year 

Self Insurance Inveslment 1% .5 % Air Utility Conditioning Reimb. Redemlation 
$ - $ 4,554,460 $ 5,427,565 $ - $ - 23,187 60,185 6,049 19,722 

20.534 - 4,577,647 5,487,750 26,583 19,722 

104,700 16,800 169,397 21,908 24,464 197,310 211,698 222,812 

4,122,535 993,460 31,024 12,323 156,186 250,524 15,018 195,894 157,106 

1,468,336 1,468,336) - $ 
(446,320) 446,320 26,583 118,806 19,722 343,386 

47 (continued) 



District School Other 

tcontinued 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana 
Comparative Statements of Cash Flows - Proprietary Fund Type 

Cash flows from operating activities Operating loss Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used in operating activities: (Increase) decrease in receivable Increase in payable Cash used in operating activities Cash flows from investing activities Earnings on deposits Cash provided by investing activities Cash flows from noncapital financing activities Contributed capital Cash provided by noncapital financing activities Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 
See accompanying notes 

Internal Service Fund Year ended June 30 1996 1995 $ (297,802) $ (262,643) 
7,988 200.019 (12,555) 194,517 (89,795) (80,681) 
84.036 229 229 84,036 
1,468,336 1.468.336 1,462,577 (80,452) 10.749 91.201 $1 473,326 $ 10,749 



 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Notes to Combined Financial Statements (continued) 
8. Retirement Systems (continued) Funding Policy: 
Plan members are required to contribute 8.0% and 9.1% of their annual covered salary for the Regular Plan and Plan A, respectively. The School Board is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The current rate is 16.5% of annual covered payroll for the membership plans. Member contributions and employer contributions for the TRS are established by state law and rates are established by the Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial Committee. The School Board's employer contribution for the TRS, as provided by state law, is funded by the State of Louisiana through annual appropriations, by deductions from local ad valorem taxes, and by remittances from the School Board. 
The School Board's contributions to the TRS for the years ending June 30, 1996, 1995, and 1994, were $6,694,002, $6,025,212, and $5,899,334, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. B. Louisiana School Employees' Retirement System (LSERS) Plan Description: 
The LSERS provides retirement benefits as well as disability and survivor benefits. Ten years of service credit is required to become vested for retirement benefits and five years to become vested for disabihty and survivor benefits. 
Benefits are established and amended by state statute. The LSERS issues a publicly available financial reporting that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for. the LSERS. That report may be obtained by writing to the Louisiana School Employees' Retirement System, Post Office Box 44516, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804, or by calling (504) 925-6484. Funding Policy: 
Plan members are required to contribute 6.35% of their annual covered salary and the School Board is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The current rate is 6% of annual covered payroU. Member contributions and employer contributions for the LSERS are established by state law and rates are established by the Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial Committee. The School Board's employer contribution for the LSERS is funded by the State of Louisiana through annual appropriations. 28 



Assets Cash and cash equivalents Receivables Due from other funds Inventory Total assets Liabilities and fund balances Liabilities: Accoums payable Salaries and wages payable Due to other funds Deferred revenues Other liabilities Total liab~iL;t~e~ 

Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Special Revenue Ftmds Combining Balance Sheet 
June 30, 1996 (With Comparative Totals for June 30, 1995) Supplemental Salaries Sales Tax Air Utility Conditioning 

Fund balances: Reserved for inventory Unreserved: Designated for instructional costs Designated for capital improvements and facilities acquisition Designated for mandated costs Designated for restoration of salary reductions Designated for energy conservation Designated for insurance losses Designated for maintenance and operation Designated for payment of supplemental salaries Undesignated Total fund balances Total liabilities and fund balances 

-$ 1,567,402 - $ 963,367 280,807 - $ - 300,000 
1,567,402 1,244,174 

- 145,389 

300,000 

363,108 

45 (continued) 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Special Revenue Fund - Supplemental Salaries Sales Tax - 1% Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (GAAP Basis) 

Rewmues Local sources: Sales tax Earnings on deposits Total revenues 
Expenditures Instructional services Regular programs Special education programs Vocational programs Other instructional Ad ult/continuing education Support services: 

Fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 

Pupil support services Instructional staff services General administration School administration Business services MaintenanCe of plant Student transportation services Central services Noninstructional services: Food services Total expenditures Excess of revenues over expenditures 
Fund balance at beginning of year Fund balance at end of year 

Variance Favorable Actual (Unfavorable B 
5,807,012 $ 4,554,460 $ (1,252,552) 30,000 5,837,012 
2,306,562 716,600 19,885 17,600 6,290 113,050 13,850 5,470 186,800 42,810 230,500 218,700 

23,187 4,577,647 
2,859,075 712,775 18,452 13,497 4,759 104,700 16,800 5,522 169,397 24,464 197,310 211,698 16,386 

(6,813) (1,259,365) 
(552,513) 3,825 1,433 4,103 1,531 
8,350 (2,950) (52) 17,403 18,346 33,190 7,002 (16,386) 217,450 222,812 (5,362 



District #1 Sales Tax 

Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Special Revenue Funds (continued) 

The District #1 Sales Tax Fund is set up to collect, record and disburse funds related to the .5% sales tax passed in October 1992 to provide additional support for the school system. The School Board designated the tax for capital improvements and facility and equipment support--38%, classroom instruction--36%, mandated costs--14%, and salary restoration--12%= 
School Food Service The School Food Service Fund is used to account for the operations of the school food service programs in the parish school system during the regular school term. The basic goals of the school food service programs are to serve nutritionally adequate, attractive and moderately priced meals, to help children grow socially and emotionally, to extend educational influences to the homes of school children, and to provide learning experiences that will improve children's food habits with the ultimate goal of physically fit adults. IDL:,-B 101-476 IDEA-B 101-476 (formerly P. L. 94-142) is a federally financed program for a free appropriate education for all identified handicapped individuaks from 3 to 21 years of age in the least restric- tive environment. 
Title 1 Fund Title I is a program for economically and educationally deprived school children, which is fed- erally fmanced, State administered and locally operated by the School Board. The Title I services are provided through various projects which are designated to meet the special needs of educa- tionally deprived children. The activities supplement, rather than replace, State and local-man- dated activities. 
Even Start Family Literacy The Even Start program is a federally funded family literacy program which provides educational training to eligible parents and their dependent children up to age seven. Training requires family participation. 

43 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe. Louisiana Special Revenue Fund - Air Conditioning Redemption Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (GAAP Basis) 

Revenues Local sources: Earnings on deposits Total revenues 
Fund balance at beginning of year Fund balance at end of year 

Fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 

53 

Variance Favorable Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 



This letter is intended solely for the information and use of management, the executive committee, the School Board, and others within the organization. This restriction is not intended to limit the distribution of this report, which is a matter of public record. 
November 15, 1996 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Special Revenue Fund - School Food Service Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (GAAP Basis) 

Revenues Local sources: Cash payments for meals Other State and federal sources: State equalization Federal grants Other federal support Total revenues 

Fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 

Expenditures Food service operations Total expenditures Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures Other financing sources Operating transfer in Total other financing sources Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over (under) expenditures and other uses Fund balance at beginning of year Fund balance at end of year 
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Variance Favorable Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

3,921,000 4,998,077 1,077,077 
4,785,000 5,019,351 234,351) 4,785,000 5,019,351 234,351) (864,000) (21,274) 842,726) 
869,000 6,303 (862,697 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Special Revenue Fund - IDEA-B 101-476 Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (GAAP Basis) 

Revenues State and federal sources Federal grants Total revenues 

Fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 

Expenditures Instructional services: Special educational programs Support services: Instructional staff services Business services Plant services Student transportation services Total expenditures Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures Fund balance at beginning of year Fund balance at end of year 

Variance Favorable Budget Actual (Unfavorable 
520,338 $ 601,490 $ 81,152 520,338 601,490 81,152 
289,626 384,256 (94,630) 181,346 22,894 19,500 168,890 22,994 12,865 12,456 (100) 6,635 



Fund balance at end of year 
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in Fund Balance - 

Variance Favorable Actual (Unfavorable) 
3,387,929 $ 26,018 3,387,929 26,018 
2,713,596 (79,567) 484,255 121,644 68,434 3,387,929 

19,719 (6,045) 39,875 26,018) 
$ -$ -$ 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana 
Special Revenue Fund - Other Federal Progams Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (GAAP Basis) 

Reveiiiles State and federal sources: Other state support Federal grants Total revenues 

Fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 

Expenditures Instructional services: Special education Special programs Adult education Other instructional programs Support services: Pupil support services Instructional staff support services Business services Plant services Total expenditures Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures Fund balance at beginning of year Fund balance at end of year 

Variance Favorable Actual (Unfavorable) Bud 
$ 43,818 $ 1,284,339 1,328,157 -$ 943,947 (43,818) (340.392) 
201,284 221,280 146,659 73,774 251,600 339,413 45,588 48,559 

943,947 (384,210) 
22,456 95,210 97,141 64,362 96,347 502,670 35,313 

78,828 26,070 49,518 9,412 
155,253 (163,257) 10,275 30,448 18,111 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Special Revenue Funds (continued) 

Other Federal Programs Fund The Other Federal Programs Fund is used to account for smaller special grants from departments of the federal government. 
State Grants The State Grants Fund is used to account for special grants from departments of the State of Louisiana. Local Grants Fund The Local Grants Fund is used to account for special grants from local sources in and around Ouachita Parish. 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Special Revenue Fund - Self Insurance Investment Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (GAAP Basis) 
Fiscal 3,ear ended June 30, 1996 

Fund balance at beginning of year 
Residual equity transfers out Fund balance at end of year 

49 

Variance Favorable Budget Actual (Unfavorable 



 



8,683,151 359,340 8,325,981 491,569 80,929,048 76,489,367 
34,544,803 9,961,415 3,419,030 365,915 297,990 954,371 

30,746,524 9,144,943 2,472,869 492,072 268,574 1,620,653 
See accompanying notes 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - All Governmental Fund Types 
Fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 (With Memorandum Totals for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1995) 

Revenues Local sources: Ad valorem taxes (Note 5) Sales and use taxes Earnings on deposits Cash payments for meals Other Stale and federal sources: State equalization Revenue sharing Professional improvement program State contribution for teacher retirement (Note 8) Other state support Federal grants Other federal support Total revenues 
Expenditures Instructional services Regular programs Special education programs Special programs Vocational programs Adult/continuing education Other instructional programs 

Special General Revenue Debt Service 
$ 6,526,883 $ - $ 4,584,904 - 13,693,797 506,506 142,874 70,774 - 1,433,638 1,337,677 116,956 40,187,779 732,188 886,729 955,757 128,457 - 581,638 463,027 8,220,124 - 359,340 - 50,992,815 25,280,555 4,655,678 
26,148,445 7,719,867 315,639 172,771 528,830 

8,396,358 2,241,548 3,419,030 50,276 125,219 425,541 

(continued) 



Service A~encv 
Account Groups General Fixed Assets General Long-Term Oblil~alions 

(continued) 

Total (Memorandum Only) 1996 1995 

541,469 1,584,401 
1.060.027 104,408,749 

26,819 
104,408,749 1,060,027 30,806 2,853,798 134,525 

43,085,801 
101,594,904 (194,543) 269,266 2,586,479 171,586 94,038 363,257 1,030,241 1,069,338 162,582 145,389 363,018 
726,813 545,321 116.303 118,806 468,336 343,386 446,320 

See accompanying notes 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana 
Combined Balance Sheet - All Fund Types and Account Groups (continued) June 30, 1996 (With Memorandum Totals for June 30, 1995) 

Liabilities, equity and other credits Liabilities: Accounts payable Salaries and wages payable Due to other funds (Notes 4 and 11) Deferred revenues Other liabilities Amounts held for others Compensated absences payable (Note 10) General obligation bonds and certificates of indebtedness payable (Note 10) Total liabilities Equity and other credits: Investment in general fixed assets (Note 7) Retained earnings (deficit) Fund balances: Reserved for encumbrances Reserved for debt service Reserved for inventory Unreserved: Designated for instructional costs Designated for capital improvements and facilities acquisition Desigrtated for mandated costs Desirn~ ted for restoration of salary reductions De~r :....ted for energy conservation Desigtiated for insurance losses (Note 13) Designated for maintenance and operation Designated for payment of supplemental salaries Undesignated Total equity and other credits Total liabilities, equity and other credits 

4 

Governmental Fund Types 

8,163,448 5,588,080 94 
30,806 - 2,853,798 134,525 94,038 

363,108 
2.282.825 226,507 

(continued) 



Proprietary Fiduciary Fund Type Fund Type Account Groups General General Internal Fixed Long-Term Service A~encv Assets Obli~alions 

(conunued) 

Total (Memorandum Only) 1996 1995 $ 1,473,326 $ 1,584,401 $ - $ - 13,170 - - - 115,000 - - - - - 1,231,366 - - 86,034,340 - 17,143,043 - - 2,853,798 

$ 17,806,778 3,467,547 3,921,826 134,525 1,231,366 86,034,340 17,143,043 2,853,798 

$ 15,864,971 3,946,455 1,771,785 171,586 1,246,800 86,959,332 13,388,772 2,586,479 
21,986,202 21,986,202 25,178,521 - - 1,979,397 1,979,397 2,682,357 $ 1,601.496 $ 1,584,401 $104,408,749 $ 26,819,397 $156,558,822 $153,797,058 

See accompanying notes 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana 
Combined Balance Sheet - All Fund Types and Account Groups 

June 30, 1996 (With Memorandum Totals for June 30, 1995) 

Assets Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4) Receivables (Notes 5 and 6) Due from other funds (Note 11) Inventory Land (Note 7) Buildings and improvements (Note 7) Furniture and equipment (Note 7) Amount available in debt service funds Amount to be provided for payment: Retirement of bonded debt and certificates of indebtedness (Note 10) Amount to be provided for compensated absences (Note 10) 'Total assets 

2 

Governmental Fund Types 
$ 8,621,321 281,935 1,573,823 $ 3,308,125 3,138,155 2,233,003 134,525 

$ 2,819,605 34,287 

$10,477,079 $ 8,813,808 $ 2,853,892 

(continued) 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Notes to Combined Financial Statements (continued) 
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) B. Fund Accounting Tile financial transactions of the School Board are recorded in individual funds and account groups, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that include its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures, or expenses as appropriate. Each account group represents a financial reporting device designed to provide accountability for certain assets and liabilities that are not recorded in the funds because they do not affect net expendable available financial resources. The various funds and account groups are reported by type in the financial statements~ Amounts in the "Totals (Memorandum Only)" columns in the financial statements do not reflect presentation in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; rather they represent a summation of the combined financial statement line items of the fund types and account groups and are presented only for analytical purposes. The summation includes fund types and account groups that use different bases of accounting, both restricted and unrestricted amounts, interfund transactions that have not been e/iminated and the caption "amounts to be provided" which is not an asset in the usual sense. Consequently, amounts shown in the "Totals (Memorandum Only)" columns are not comparable to a consolidation and do not represent the total resources available or total revenues and expenditures/expenses of the School Board. 
The School Board uses the following fund categories, fund types and account groups 
Governmental Fund Types: General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the School Board. It is used to account for all financial resources except those required to be accour~ted for in another fund. Special Revenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than special assessments) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. 
Debt Service Funds - Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for and the payment of general long-term debt principal, interest and related costs. 



~-~J ERNST & YOUNG LLP ~ 4200 One Shell Square 70~ Poydras Streel New Orleans Louisiana 70139-9869 
Report of Independent Auditors 

The Ouachita Parish School Board 
We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the Ouachita Parish School Board (School Board) as of and for the year ended June 30, 1996, as listed in the Financial Section of the Table of Contents. These general purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the School Board's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose financial statements based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall general purpose financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for 
In our opinion, the general purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the School Board at June 30, 1996, and the results of its operations and cash flows of its proprietary fund type for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole. The combining, individual fund and account group statements and schedules listed in the Financial Section of the Table of Contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the general purpose financial statements of the School Board. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole. The schedules listed in the Statistical Section of the Table of Contents were not audited by us and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them. 
November 15. 1996 ~LLV 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - General Fund (Non-GAAP Basis) and All Other Governmental Fund Types (GAAP Basis) 

Revenues Local sources: Ad valorem taxes (Note 5) Sales and use taxes Earnings on deposits Cash payments for meals Other State and federal sources: State equalization Revenue sharing Professional improvement program State contribution for teacher retirement (Note 8) Other state support Federal progratns Other federal support Total revenues Expenditures Instructional services: Regular programs Special education programs Special programs Vocational programs Adult/continuing education Other instructional programs Support services: Student support services Instructional st~f services School administration General administration Business services Plant services Student tlransportation services Ce0tral services Noninstructional services: Food service operations Communi~ sere'ice programs Facilib' acquisition and construction Debt service (Note 10): Prancipal Interest Other Total expenditures Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures Other financing .sources (uses) Operating transfers in (Note 14) Operating transfers out (Note 14) Proceeds from the sale of buildings Total other financing sources (uses) Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over (under) expenditures and other uses Fund balance at July 1. 1995 Residual equity transfers out Fund balance at June 30. 1996 (Note 12) 

Fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 
General Fund Special Revenue Funds Variance Variance Favorable Favorable Budeet Actual (Unfavorable) Budtet Actual (Unfavorable 

10 (continued) 



 



 



 



A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The School Board has received a Certificate of Achievement for the last nine consecutive years. Management believes our current report continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and we are submitting it to GFOA. ASBO Certificate of Excellence For the ninth consecutive year, the School Board received the Association of School Business Officials International Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting for the ftscal year ended June 30, 1995. This award certifies that the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995 substantially conforms to the principles and standards of financial reporting as recommended and adopted by the Association of School Business Officials International. The award is granted only after an intensive review of financial reports by an expert panel of certified public accountants and practicing school business officials. Management believes that the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fis- cal year ended June 30, 1996, which will be submitted to ASBO for review, con- tinues to conform to its principles and standards. Acknowledgments It is our desire that this report contain the necessary information and data which will provide a better understanding of the operations of the School Board. It is further hoped that this report has been designed in a manner to be used as an administrative tool and general source of information so as to enhance our accountability to the public. I would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere appreciation to the staff of the Business Department whose extraordinary efforts contributed significantly in making this report a reality. In closing, without the support of the Ouachita Parish School Board, preparation of this report would not have been possible. 

XVIU 
ZZJf Richard B. Garrett, CPA Business Manager 



PRESENT: ,, Roof renovations were completed at five schools. 
~ Telecommunications training including the use of E-mail was provided to administrators. ~ Curriculum development projects in K- 12 were highly effective in producing local guidelines for content standards, activities, and assessments. 
General Fixed Assets 

FUTURE: Maintenance will continue to replace or repair roofs as the need arises. 
The telephone system will be upgraded for the entire school dis- trict. Professional staff will generate "proficiency" exams based upon the content standards for each course 

The General Fixed Assets Account Group of the School Board is utilized to record those fixed assets used in perforfiaance of general School Board functions. The amount represents the original cost of the assets. Depreciation of General Fund fixed assets is not recognized in the accounting system as explained in the notes to the financial statements. Independent Audit State statutes require an audit by an independem certified public accountant on a annual basis. The School Board selected the fura of Ernst & Young LLP to perform the annual audit. All funds and account groups of the School Board presented in this report have been audited by Ernst & Young LLP. The audit has been completed and the auditors' report on the General Purpose Financial Statements is included in the Financial Section of this report. In addition, the CAFR includes a Statistical Section, which was prepared by the Business Department and our School Board is solely responsible for its content. 
GFOA Certificate of Achievement The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the School Board for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995. The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award recognizing conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state and local financial reports. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a governmental unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual Finan- cial Report, whose contents conform to program standards. Such reports must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable iegal requirements. xvll 



unemployment rate decreased in the ftrst five months but started an upward trend the next two months. Also, having a direct affect on retail sales and our sales tax collections is the number of new businesses in the area. The western part of the parish has seen several new business open in the last three years, mainly in the restaurant business. ALso, we are starting to see the benefits of the sales tax from the three new super stores that opened in 1994 and 1995. Sales tax collections have increased by 8.7% from 1994 to 1996. We expect this trend to continue. Major Initiatives The School Board has had a very successful year both financially and academically. We are looking forward for this trend to continue in the years to come. Some of our major accomplishments for 1995-96 and our goals for the future are listed below: PRESENT: 
~ Installed eight computer labs - which enabled us to have labs in all of our schools. 
~ Networked all schools to central office allowing transmission of student and financial information. 
~ Centralized copying services helping to control copying cost. 
~ Added four classrooms each to two schools in order to reduce over- crowding of schools at a cost of $500,000. Due to our sound financial position, this cost was funded by the General Fund. * The school system received funding from the Goals 2000 Program. 

XVI 

FUTURE 
~ Over the next three years, we will continually expand and upgrade all of the computer labs in our schools. ,, We will expand our network, which presently connects the cen- tral offices, to the computer labs and libraries. Our ultimate goal is to provide each classroom access to the information super highway. 
Plans are being made to increase our centralized copying to printing our own textbooks. 
High School classrooms and com- puter labs will use CD ROM for "image processing" for teaching science. 
~ Grants received helped to establish our goals and objectives from now until the year 2000. The outcome will be better academic perform- ance of our students. 



result from the School Board's self-insurance plans. This fund is funded through annual appropriations from the General Fund of $150,000. Appropriations can be increased or decreased on an as-needed basis. 
As a part of this comprehensive plan, various risk control techniques are main- tained. These include an employee accident prevention training program and a School Board-adopted operation Safety plan. 
Economic Condition and Outlook The Ouachita Parish School System is located in the northeast part of the State and is the economic "hub" for this region. Our local economic conditions are strongly influenced by the national economic forecast and national politics. Ouachita Parish's economy depends largely on the retail and services sectors of the economy. In the last three years, three super stores have located in the parish. These stores account for approximately 70% of the retail sales. In the services area, the single largest building construction project in the history of the local area began. This project, a new library at Northeast Louisiana University, was bid at over $19.5 million and will take two years to build. The total economic impact of this project is estimated to be in the vicinity of $35 million with earnings of around $10 million and the creation of over 275 jobs. Agricultural crops also play a major role in the local economy. Forestry products and cotton have been the main crops for many years. Cotton yields for 1996 are up approximately 25 pounds per acre over the 1996 yield; however, cotton prices have dropped some in 1996. Local prices for forest products increased sharply in 1994, but have decreased to more normal prices in 1996. The local economy has a direct impact on the School Board's ability to fund its local share of the budget. Changes in property values and retail sales have the greatest economic impact on the School Board's local funding, as approximately 21% of the school system's operations are funded through local property and sales taxes. Property values are reassessed every four years. Fiscal year 1996-97 is a reassessment year. Based on the recent reassessment, property values assessed for School Board taxes have increased from $218,555,884 in fiscal 1995-96 to approximately $232,000,000 in fiscal 1996-97. This increase will result in approximately $430,000 more in property taxes being collected annually. The increase is due to an increase in the banking industry, timber value, and residential property. The increase of approximately $13,400,000 in property values, as a result of the reassessment, is somewhat more than the normal expected increase of $5 to $10 million. The increase in property values is expected to continue in the parish. Local sales taxes play a major factor in the School Board's ability to provide local support to the school system. The unemployment rate has a direct relationship on retail sales and the amount of local sales tax collected. The national average of unemployment decreased from 5.7% in 1995 to 5.6% in 1996. Ouachita Parish's unemployment also decreased from 6.5% in 1995 to 5.6% in 1996. In 1996 the 
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Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana 
Notes to Combined Financial Statements (continued) 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) The Proprietary Fund is accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of this fund are included on the balance sheet. Proprietary Fund type operating statements present increases (e.g., revenues) and decreases (e.g., expenses) in net total assets. The proprietary activities did not elect to apply all FASB Statements and Interpretations issued since November 30, 1989. 
Governmental and agency funds are accounted for on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Governmental fund revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they become sus- ceptible to accrual--that is, when they become measurable and available to pay current period liabilities. Such revenue items are ad valorem and sales and use taxes and federal and state enti- tlements. Ad valorem and sales and use taxes are considered "available" when due and expected to be collected within two months after the end of ttie fiscal year in which levied. Revenue from state and federal grants are recorded when the reimbursable expenditures have been incurred. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred. Principal and interest on general long-term debt are recorded as fund liabilities when due or when amounts have been accumulated in the Debt Service Funds for payments to be made early in the following year. The Proprietary Fund is accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recog- nized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. 
D. Budget and Budgetary Accounting The School Board utilizes the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financia/statements: In July. the Superintendent submits to the School Board proposed annual appropriated budgets for the General Fund, the Special Revenue Funds, and. the Debt Service Funds for the fiscal year commencing the prior July 1. Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments. Prior to September 15, the budget is legally enacted through adoption by the School Board. The only legal requirement is that the School Board adopt a balanced budget; that is, total budgeted revenues and other financing sources (including fund balance) must equal or exceed total budgeted expenditures and other financing uses. The budget is revised periodically throughout the school year, when deemed appropriate, but a balanced budget is always approved. 

17 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Notes to Combined Financial Statements (continued) 
5. Ad Valorem Taxes (conlinued) State law requires the Sheriff to collect property taxes in the calendar year in which the assess- ment is made. Property taxes become delinquent January 1 of the following year. If taxes are not paid by the due date, taxes bear interest at the rate of 1.25% per month until the taxes are paid. After notice is given to the delinquent taxpayers, the Sheriff is required by the Constitution of the State of Louisiana to sell the least quantity of property necessary to settle the taxes and interest owed. All property taxes are recorded in the General and Debt Service Funds on the basis explained in Note 2.C. Revenues in such funds are recognized in the accounting period in which they become measurable and available. Property taxes are considered measurable in the calendar year of the tax levy. 
Delinquent taxes considered to be uncollectible are not recorded as revenues. Property taxes receivable are considered available because they are substantially collected within 60 days subse- quent to year end. 
6. Receivables The re.ceivables of $3,467,547 at June 30, 1996 were as follows: 
Taxes: Ad valorem Sales and use Grants: Federal State Local Total 

Special Debt Internal General Revenue Service Service Fund Funds Funds Fund Total 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana 
Notes to Combined Financial Statements (continued) 

4. Cash and Cash Equivalents (continued) Individual funds with significant cash deficit balances at June 30, 1996 were as follows 

5. Ad Valorem Taxes 

Fund Cash Deficit Balance Even Start Other federal School Food Service State Projects 
All taxable property in Louisiana is required by law to be assessed annually at a percentage of its f~ market value by the parish assessor, except for public utility property which is assessed by the Louisiana Tax Commission. The 1974 Louisiana Constitution provides that all land and residential properly are to be assessed at 10% of fair market value; agricultural, horticultural, marsh lands, timber lands and certain his- toric buildings are to he assessed at 15% of fair market value. Fair market values are determined by the elected assessor of the parish and are subject to review and final certification by the Louisiana Tax Commission. The assessor is required to reappraise all properly every four years. The School Board is permitted by constitutional and statutory authority of the State to levy taxes up to $29.56 per $1,000 of assessed valuation for operations other than the payment of principal and interest on long-term debt. This is the amount which was levied for fiscal 1996. The Sheriff of Ouachita Parish, as provided by State law, is the official tax collector of general property taxes levied by the School Board. The 1996 properly tax calendar was as follows: Millage rates adopted Levy date Tax bills mailed Due date Lien date 

September 12, 1995 November 3, 1995 November 3, 1995 December 31,. 1995 January 1, 1996 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana 
Notes to Combined Financial Statements (continued) 

4. Cash and Cash Equivalents At year end, the book balances of the School Board's deposits (including bank certificates of deposit) were $6,806,684 and the bank balances were $9,606,048. Of the bank balances, $547,455 was covered by federal depository insurance and $8,446,828 was covered by collateral held by the trust department of agents of the pledging financial institutions in the School Board's name;. Securities that may be pledged as collateral are obligations of the United States Govern- ment and its agencies, and obligations of the State of Louisiana and its municipalities and school districts. The remaining $611,765 of bank balances were uninsured or uncollateralized at year end. This undercollateralization occurred only at year end, and arose because of significant transfers of funds to one bank so year-end payrolls, particularly the sales tax supplements, would be met. The bank resolved the undercollateralization within one day of year end. At June 30. 1996, the School Board held short-term investments whose market values approxi- mated their recorded costs. These investments, which are considered to be cash equivalents, are held as follows: Insured securities held in the trust department of a custodian bank in the School Board's name $ 2,332,159 Uninsured securities held by the trust deparmaent of a custodian bank in the School Board's name Uninsured securities held in Louisiana Asset Management Pool 5,590,268 3,077,667 $11.000.094 The School Board maintains a cash pool that is available for use by the General Fund and certain federal and state grant-oriented Special Revenue Funds. The remaining Special Revenue Funds, the Debt Service Funds, the Capital Projects Fund and the Internal Service Fund maintain separate bank accounts at local financial institutions. Positive book cash balances are displayed on the combined balance sheet in the account "cash and cash equivalents." Negative book cash balances are included in "due to other funds" on the combined balance sheet. 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Notes to Combined Financial Statements (continued) 
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) During fiscal year 1996, total expenses for claims and insurance premiums related to the self- insurance plans were $539,811. The School Board's activity in claims liability for ftscal years 1996 and 1995 was: 
Claims liability at beginning of the year Incurred claims and provision for incurred but not reported Claims payments Claims liability at the end of the year 

1996 1995 

3. Expenditures. Budget and Actual, and Retained Earnings Deficit 
The following individual funds had actual expenditures over total budget appropriations for the year ended June 30, 1996. The variances are disclosed at the legal level of budgetary control as described in Note 2.D. of these general purpose financial statements. 

Fund Unfavorable Budget Aetna! Variance 
Special Revenue Funds: Supplemental Salaries Sales Tax - 1% $ 4,095,567 $ 4,577,647 Supplemental Salaries Sales Tax - .5% 5,350,000 5,934,070 Title I 3,361,911 3,387,929 School Food service 4,785,000 5,019,351 IDEA-B 101-476 520,338 601,490 State Grants 575,613 581,574 Debt Service Funds: East Ouachita Bond West Ouachita Bond 1,321,610 2,930,010 1,360,647 3,027,712 

$(482,080) (584,070) (26,018) (234,351) (81,152) (5,961) 
(39,037) (97,702) Excess expenditures in these funds were offset by excess revenues over budgeted amounts. 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Notes to Combined Financial Statements (continued) 
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) The voters of Ouachita Parish authorized the School Board to levy and collect an additional .5% sales and use tax beginning January 1993. The tax revenue is to be used exclusively to supplement other revenues available to the School Board for the following purposes: Thirty-eight percent of the revenues received by the School Board are to be used for capital improvements and facility and equipment support. Thirty-six percent of the revenues received by the School Board are to be used for classroom instruction. Fourteen percent of the revenues received by the School Board are to be used for the payment of mandated costs. Twelve percent of the revenues received by the School Board are to be used to restore salary reductions. On July 15, 1995, the voters of Ouachita Parish authorized the School Board to levy and collect an additional 1% sales and use tax beginning October 1, 1995. The tax revenue is to be used exclusively to supplement other revenue available to the School Board for the purpose of teacher and School Board employees' salaries and benefits. 
O. Self Insurance The School Board is self-insured for workers' compensation and general liability insurance cover- age, and maintains policies with large deductibles for property and fleet vehicle insurance. The School Board has an excess insurance policy which covers individual workers' compensation claims and occurrences in excess of $1,000,000. Exp~;nses related to these plans are recognized in the Self Insurance Internal Service Fund as claims are incurred. A liability for unpaid and incurred but not reported claims is based on the School Board's known claims and its previous experience. The workers' compensation plan is managed by a third-party administrator who processes and investigates claims, pays valid claims and estimates the liabilities for unpaid claims. The remaining plans are managed by School Board personnel. 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Notes to Combined Financial Statements (continued) 
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) M. Compensated Absences 
All 12-month employees earn from 10 to 15 days of annual leave each year depending on length of service with the School Board. Annual leave is credited at the beginning of each fiscal year and a maximum of five days can be accumulated and carried forward into a new fiscal year. 
All school employees earn ten days of sick leave each year. Sick leave may be accumulated with- out limitations. Upon retirement, unused accumulated sick leave of up to 25 days is paid to employees at the employees' current rates of pay. The accrual recorded for earned sick leave is based on a 25-day maximum per employee. Sick leave is not payable upon discharge or termina- tion. Upon retirement, accumulated sick leave is used in the retirement benefit computation as earned service. Sick and vacation leave that has been claimed by employees as of the end of the ftscal year is recorded as an expenditure in the year claimed. Sick and vacation leave accrued as of the end of the ftscal year is valued using employees' current rates of pay and the total is included in the General Long-Term Obfigations Account Group. Accrued sick and vacation leave will be paid from future years' resources. No allowance is made for the immaterial amounts of sick leave for- feited when employees resign or retire. N. Sales and Use Tax 
The voters of Ouachita Parish authorized the City of Monroe School Board and the Ouachita Parish School Board to jointly levy and collect a .5% sales and use tax. The net proceeds of the ~x ~e t~ be alle, c~te~ ar~l prorated, bet,uee~ the t~ ~h~l b~ard, s ama~ally ~r~ the basis t>~ ave~- age daily membership for the preceding school year. The tax revenue is to be used exclusively to supplement other revenues available to the School Board for the following purposes: Eighty-eight percent of the revenues received by the School Board are to be used for the payment of the salaries of teachers, as defined by the Louisiana State Department of Education. 
Twelve percent of the revenues received by the School Board are to be used for the payment of salaries to designated personnel, other than teachers. 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Notes to Combined Financial Statements (continued) 
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
H. Inventory Inventory is accounted for using the consumption method, where expenditures are recognized as inventory is used. Inventory is stated at average cost using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis. Inventory consists of commodities and purchased food held for consumption. Inventories in the governmental fund types are equally offset by a fund balance reserve which shows that these inventories do not constitute "available spendable resources" even though they are a component of total assets. 
I. Fixed Assets All fixed assets acquired or constructed for general governmental purposes are reported as expen- ditures in the fund that finances the asset acquisition and capitalized in the General Fixed Assets Account Group at historical cost. Donated fixed assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the time received. J. Depreciation No depreciation is provided on general fixed assets. 
K. Reserves and Designations Portions of fund equity are reserved for future use and are, therefore, not available for future appropriation or expenditure. Designations of unreserved fund balances indicate the School Board's tentative plans for the use of financial resources in a future period. 
L. Interfund Transactions Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues, expenditures, or expenses. Transac- tions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made from it that are properly applicable to another fund are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed. 
All other interfund transactions, except quasi-external transactions and reimbursements, are reported as transfers. Nonrecurring or nonroutine permanent transfers of equity are reported as residual equity transfers. All other interfund transfers are reported as operating transfers. 
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Genera/adminiswation Business services Plant services Student transportation services Central services Noninstructional services Food service operations Community service programs Facility acquisition and construction Debt service (Note 10): Principal Interest Other Total expenditures Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures Other financing sources (uses) Operating transfers in (Note 14) Operating transfers out (Note 14) Proceeds from sale of buildings Total other financing sources (uses) Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over (under) expenditures and other uses Fund balances at beginning of year Residual equity transfers out (Note 14) Fund balances at end of year (Note 12) 

781,054 21,908 13~989 895,444 236,313 - 5,413,783 1,125,739 3,195,572 438,293 697,275 - - 149,423 57,954 858,598 5,242,163 142,760 365,000 41,603 - 40.350 2,560,000 1,688,370 

55,320 227,958 267,319 2,258,311 4,466,106 2,586,479 - (1,468,336) $ 2,313.631 $ 3,225,728 $ 2,853,798 
(continued) 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana 
Notes to Combined Financial Statements (continued) 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) The General Fund budget is not adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GA.AP) because encumbrances are budgeted as expenditures of the current year. Unencumbered appropriations in the General Fund lapse at the end of the fiscal year whereas encumbered appropriations are carried forward to the following year. Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as amended by the School Board. The Debt Service Fund budgets and Special Revenue Fund budgets have annual appropriated budgets adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP. Except for grant-oriented funds, unencum- bered appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal year. Encumbered appropriations are utilized when goods or services are received. Grant-oriented fund budgets are adopted at the time the grant applications are approved by the grantor. Separate annual budgets are adopted for unen- cumbered appropriations of grant-oriented Special Revenue Funds at the beginning of the fol- lowing fiscal year. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, and Debt Service Funds. All budgets are operational at the departmental or project level. The Superintendent of the School Board is authorized to transfer budget amounts between line item activity and between any function of an individual fund; how- ever, any supplemental appropriations that amend the total expenditures of any fund require School Board resolution. The effects of budget revisions passed during the year were insignificant to the budgets as originally approved. 
E. Encumbrances Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods or services. Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropria- tion, is employed as an extension of formal budgetary control in the General Fund. For GAAP purposes, encumbrances outstanding at year end in the General Fund are reported as reservations of fund balance for subsequent year expenditures. However, for budgetary purposes these encum- brances are recorded as expenditures. 



 

550,597 9,310,896 1,606,640 7,704,256 
See accompanying notes 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana 
Notes to Combined Financial Statements (continued) 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
Proprietary Fund Type: lnternal Service Fund - The Internal Service Fund is used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one fund to other funds of Ouaehita Parish School Board. The Self Insur- ance Fund, which is used to purchase an insurance policy and to account for third-party adminis- trative costs and claims, is reported as an internal service fund. 
Fiduciary Fund Type Agency Fund - The Agency Fund is used to account for assets held by the School Board in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private or school organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds. The School Activity Funds, Migrant Funds of Other Parishes and Deferred Compensation Plan are reported as Agency Funds. Account Groups: 
General Fixed Assets Account Group - The General Fixed Assets Account Group is used to account for all fixed assets of the School Board. 
Gem:ral Long-Term Obligations Account Group - The General Long-Term Obligations Account Group is used to account for all long-term obligations of the School Board. C. Basis of Accounting 
The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measure- ment focus. A1/ governmental funds are accounted for using a current financial resources meas- urement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities are included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases (i.e., reve- nues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. 



 

Monroe, Louisiana ForThe~'ear Ended June 30, 1996 



1. General Information 

Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Notes to Combined Financial Statements 
June 30, 1996 

The Ouachita Parish School Board (School Board) is a corporate body created under Louisiana Revised Statutes 17:51. A board consisting of seven publicly elected members, each representing a separate legally established district, is charged with the management and operation of the school system. The school system is composed of a central offlce, 31 schools and 9 support facilities. Student enrollment as of May 1996 was approximately 17,600. The School Board employs approximately 2,200 persons, of which 1,100 are directly involved in the instructional process. The remainder provide ancillary support such as general administration, repair and maintenance, bus transporta- tion and food service. The regular school term normally begins during the latter half of August and runs until the end of May. 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
The accounting policies of the School Board conform to governmental accounting standards which are applicable to governmental entities. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting standards. The following is a summary of the significant policies. A. Financial Reporting Entity 
For financial reporting purposes, the School Board's financial statements include all funds, account groups, schools, agencies and committees for which the School Board is financially accountable. The School Board is not aware of any other entities that should be included within the financial statements. 
Certain units of local government, such as other independently elected officials, the parish police jury and municipalities, are excluded from the accompanying financial statements. These units have their own elected governing authorities and are not financially accountable to the School Board. 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana 
Special Revenue Fund - District #1 Sales Tax Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (GAAP Basis) 

Revenues Local sources: Sales and use tax Earnings on deposits Total revenues 

Fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 

Expenditures Instructional services: Regular programs Vocational Other instructional Support services: Pupil support services Instructional staff services School administration Plant services Facility acquisition and construction Debt services: Principal Interest Total expenditures Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 
Other financing uses Operating transfer out Total other financing uses Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over (under) expenditures and other uses Fund balance at beginning of year Fund balance at end of year 

Variance Favorable Budget Actual (Unfavorable 
3,390,000 3,742,974 352,974 
1,310,644 
129,198 120,094 
1,353,409 

1,413,548 800 60,278 92,621 7,751 41,692 576,074 136,225 
365,000 41,603 

(102,904) (800) 68,920 27,473 (7,751) (41,692) 777,335 (136,225) (365,000) (41.603) 2,913,345 2,735,592 177,753 
476,655 1,007,382 530,727 
1,820,209) (402,877) 1,417,332 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Retained Earnings - Proprietary Fund Type 

Operating revenue Charges for services Tot~J operating revenue Operating expenses SeLf-insurance claims and insurance premiums Total operating expenses Operating loss 
Non,operating revenues Earuings on deposits Other Total nonoperating income Net loss Retained earnings at beginning of year Contributed capital Retained earnings (deficit) at end of year 
See accompanying notes 

Internal Service Fund Year ended June 30 1996 1995 $ 150,000 $ 300,000 150,000 300,000 
447,802/ (562,643 (447~802) (562,643) (297,802) (262,643) 
83,775 229 261 84.036 229 (213,766) (262,4141 (194,543) 67,871 1~468~336 $ 1,060~027 $ (194,5431 



Debt Service Funds To~l(Memorandum Budge Variance Favorable (Unfavorable) Budget Actua Favorable (Unfavorable 

See accompanying notes 11 

(continued) 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Notes to Combined Financial Statements (continued) 
7. Changes in General Fixed Assets The changes in genera/fixed assets were as fo//ows 
Land Buildings and improvements Furml:ure and equipment Total 
8. Retirement Systems 

Balance Adjustments Balance Jiffy 1, and June 30, 1995 Additions Deletions Reclassifications 1996 

In 1996, the School Board adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No, 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers. The School Board had no pension liability or asset at the effective date of the transition. Substantially all employees of the School Board are members of two statewide retirement systems. In general, professional employees (such as teachers and principals) and lunchroom workers are members of the Teachers' Retirement System of Louisiana; other employees, such as custodial personnel and bus drivers, are members of the Louisiana School Employees" Retirement System. These systems are cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans administered by separate boards of trustees. Pertinent information relative to each plan follows: A. Teachers' Retirement System of Louisiana (TRS) 
Plan Description: The TRS consists of three membership plans: Regular Plan, Plan A, and Plan B. The School Board participates in two of the membership plans -- the Regular Plan and Plan A. The TRS pro- vides retirement benefits as well as disability and survivor benefits. Ten years of service credit is required to become vested for retirement benefits and five years to become vested for disability and survivor benefits. Benefits are estabEshed and amended by State statute. The TRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes fmancial statements and required supplementary ird'ormation for the TRS. That report may be obtained by writing to the Teachers' Retirement System of Louisiana, Post Office Box 94123, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804-9123, or by calling (504) 925-6446. 
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Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana 
Notes to Combined Financial Statements (continued) 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
F. Cash and Cash Equ/valents 

Cash balances of the General Fund and most Special Revenue Funds are pooled into one bank account with the School Board's ftscal agent bank. The School Board also maintains separate bank accounts for three Special Revenue Funds, two Debt Service Funds, and the Internal Service Fund, exclusive of the individual schools' bank accounts with several banks. Interest earned on balances maintained in the pooled bank account was distributed to the individ- ual funds based on the cash balance maintained by the unrestricted participating fund during the year. The School Board maintains separate "book" cash accounts for each of the Special Revenue Funds that are pooled with the General Fund bank account. Negative book cash balances appear in the financial statements as a liability, "Due to Other Funds." The balance of these amounts will be paid primarily through collections of grants receivable reimbursements from the U. S. Depart- ment of Education. 
G. Investments The investment policies of the School Board are governed by State statutes. The Ouachita Parish School Board is authorized to invest in U. S. Government securities, certificates of deposit, inter- est..bearing demand deposits and other allowable short-term obligations including short-term repurchase agreements. These are classified as investments if their original maturities exceed 90 days; however, if the original maturities are 90 days or less, they are classified as cash equivalents. Investments are stated at cost, except for investments in the deferred compensation which are reported at market. At June 30, 1996, the School Board held $11,000,094 of investments, all of which are cash equivalents. 
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Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana General Fixed Assets Account Group 
The General Fixed Assets Account Group records the fixed assets of the School Board which are used in governmental fund-type operations. 
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Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
Fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 
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Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Ratio of Net Bonded Debt to Assessed Value and Net Bonded Debt Per Capita Last Ten Fiscal Years 
General Less Fiscal Estimated Assessed Obligation Debt Service 

Ratio of Net Bonded Bonded Net Debt to Debt Year Population (1) Value (2) Bonded Debt Fund Bonded Debt Assessed Value Per Ca 
1987 1988 1989 199(I 1991 1992 1993 ~994 1995 1996 

145,194 147,000 148,486 142,191 144,000 146,000 146,000 145,030 145,030 146,985 

$355,755,775 371,723,620 373,247,530 388,077,221 392,847,681 394,717,311 200,868,801 206,313~85 209,611,612 218,555,884 

$39,565,000 38,185,000 36,775,000 35,260,000 33,630,000 33,265,000 31,205,000 2S,990,(~0 26,615,000 24,055,000 

$3,208,576 3,375,828 3,255,765 3,447,591 3,418,367 3,044,381 2,749,404 2,483,~0 2,586,479 2,853,798 

$36,356,424 34,809,172 33,519,235 31,812,409 30,211,633 30,220,619 28,455,596 26,506,120 24,028,521 21,201,202 Computation of Legal Debt Margin Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1996 
Debt limit of 35% of total assessed value (3) excluding the City of Monroe Less total bonded debt of the School Board Legal debt margin of the School Board 

1022 0936 0898 0820 0769 0766 1417 1285 1146 0970 
East West Ouaehita Ouaehita Total 

$250 237 226 224 210 207 195 183 166 144 

$ 29,936,219 $ 46,558,340 $ 76,494,559 (2,440,000) (21,615,000) (24,055,000 $ 27,496,219 $ 24,943,340 $ 52,439,559 (1) 1994 through 1996 population figures were obtained from the Northeast Louisiana University Economic Research Center. Prior year figures were obtained from the Ouachita Parish Chamber of Commerce. The population is estimated. (2) 1993 through 1996 values include only tax districts of the School Board. Prior to 1993, assessed valuations that relate solely to the School Board are not available. Therefore, the 1985 - 1992 assessed valuation includes the entire Parish of Ouachita, which contains amounts applicable to Monroe City School Board of which Ouachita Parish School Board is not entitled. (3) Legal debt limit of 35% is established by Louisiana Revised Statute Title 34, Section 562 



 

Parish School Debt Taxes Service (1) Other (2) Total Jail Extension 
3.89 3.89 3.93 3.93 3.93 3.93 7.60 7.60 7.60 7.60 
$1,883,862 1,924,040 1,993,520 2,062,238 2,080,352 2,090,504 4,025,685 4,133,024 4,237,388 4,382,840 

77.42 74.67 74.30 71.06 69.06 69.06 66.63 66.63 69.63 69.63 
$15,114,020 14,956,551 15,398,264 15,681,731 15,239,749 15,246,202 14,619,099 15,015,343 15,648,424 16,185,223 

9.15 9.15 8.05 7.55 7.40 7.40 7.20 7.20 4.50 4.70 
$548,281 553,816 549,232 471,062 447,166 444,596 435,274 447,559 208,981 239,363 

17.53 16.47 17.69 21.26 21.30 19.92 20.02 20.02 16.66 18.56 
$4,818,183 4,794,817 5,085,435 5,229,304 5,319,300 5,347,300 5,347,303 5,482,720 7,369,815 10,525,515 

197.38 193.57 195.71 215.83 210.65 208.56 209.40 207.80 217.89 228.26 
$45,489,137 45,973,594 46,713,884 50,792,189 50,882,965 50,442,099 52,177,700 53,946,974 59,100,633 64,927,979 

(continued) 

(1) Includes West Ouachita Sewerage District bond and East Ouachita Recreation District bond. (2) Includes Health, Detention Home, Cooley Hospital, Mosquito Abatement District, Levee District, Road Light #1, East Ouachita Recreation District Maintenance, Assessment District. (3) City operating includes property inside a city; parish operating includes property outside of a city. (4) Tax levies represent the original levies of the assessor plus the amounts of the homestead exemptions. 
78 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Property Tax Rates and Tax Levies - All Direct and Overlapping Governments (4) Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Parish Fiscal Year 0 Law Fire Library 3) Operating Enforcement Maintenance Maintenance 

1987 1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 
1987 1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 !994 1995 1996 

48.46 48.46 50.64 70.93 67.86 67.15 66.37 64.77 77.92 86.19 
$10,047,919 10,343,506 9,829,164 12,935,626 13,303,463 12,799,331 13,199,430 13,963.284 16,412,069 17,918,294 

Tax Rates (mills per dollar) 6.15 6.15 6.20 6.20 6.20 6.20 6.27 6.27 6.27 6.27 

9.98 9.98 10.08 10.08 10.08 10.08 10.19 10.19 10.19 10.19 Tax Levies (4) $1,445,092 1,474,810 1,528,714 1,587,405 1,596,869 1,601,129 1,604,695 1,645,414 1,681,298 1,726,212 

$4,833,088 4,936,171 5,112,982 5,289,245 5,335,701 5,361,736 5,397,684 5,541,584 5,681,543 5,849,474 

19.80 19.80 19.77 19.77 19.77 19.77 20.01 20.01 20.01 20.01 
$4,377,335 4,516,878 4,654,819 4,885,521 4,887,035 4,864,922 4,841,725 4,939,079 5,011,978 5,117,704 

5.00 5.00 5.05 5.05 5.05 5.05 5.11 5.11 5.11 5.11 
$2,421,357 2,473,005 2,561,754 2,650,057 2,673,330 2,686,379 2,706,805 2,778,967 2,849,137 2,933,354 All taxes are due and collectible when assessment roils are filed on or before November 15 of the current tax year. Taxes become delinquent on January 1 of the following year. Penalty for delin- quent taxes is 10%. No discounts are allowed for taxes and there is no provision for partial payments. Taxpayers who have not paid their taxes by December 31 of each year are notified by the Sheriff through registered mail that taxes are delinquent. After the notification period expires, the Sheriff is required to sell the least quantity of property of any debtor which any bidder will buy for the amount of taxes, interest and cost due. (con~nued) 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property Last Ten Fiscal Years (1) 
Assessed Estimated Actual Year Value (2) Ratio of Total Assessed to Total Estimated 

1987 1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 

$355,755,775 371,723,620 (4) 373,247,530 (4) 388,077,221 (4) 392,847,681 (4) 394,717,311(4) 392,468,375 (4) 404,163,440 (4) 415,708,569(4) 430,868,593 (4) 

Value Actual Value (3 $3,234,143,409 3,290,618,000 3,393,159,364 3,527,974,736 3,571,342,555 3,588,339,191 3,567,894,318 3,674,213,091 3,779,168,809 3,916,987,209 (1) Source: Ouachita Parish Assessor's Office. (2) Assessed value represents total assessed value less homestead exemption (3) V 

Does not include exempt assessed valuations as follows 
(a) Manufacturing plants under a ten-year contract (b) Churches, schools, government Total exempt properties 
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1995 

11% 11% 11% 11% 11% 11% 11% 11% 11% 11% 

$ 445,864,558 $ 473,938,458 93~847r995 91,673,061 5397712,553 $ 565,611,519 



F~scal Total Year Tax Le~ 

Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Property Tax Levies and Collections Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Current Percent Prior Year Tax Levy of Levy Tax Total Ratio of Total Collections to Tax 

92.1% 105.7% 100.9% 98.3% 99.6% 101.3% 96.1% 91.7% 98.9% 100.3% 
( 1 ) "'Total Tax Levy" represents the original levy of the Assessor and is the amount to be paid by the taxpayer less pension payments of $328,816. 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana General Fund Revenues by Sources Last Ten Fiscal Years Fiscal Year Total Ad Valorem State Taxes Suppor Federal Support Misc. 1987 1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 
Fiscal Year Total 

$34,090,506 36,480,207 40,368,546 47,123,677 47,539,342 50,382,029 50,061,140 50,039,743 52,596,965 50,992,815 

$5,358,943 6,103,582 5,939,921 6,980,315 7,050,773 7,089,852 6,972,553 6,193,230 6,316,880 6,526,883 

$27,936,146 29,511,685 33,236,998 37,866,481 38,856,592 41,921,314 41,994,419 42,599,775 45,063,520 42,158,722 

$262,276 295,318 290,330 538,760 713,751 701,348 516,427 627,413 434,750 463,027 General Fund Expenditures by Functions Last Ten Fiscal Years Instruc- tion (1) General School Administration Administration 

$ 533,141 569,622 901,297 1,738,121 918,226 669,515 577,741 ~ 619,325 781,815 1,844,183 
Operational Services (2) Misc. 1987 $34,453,734 $20,593,557 $ 4,995,324 $1,946,536 $6,586,369 $331,948 1988 35,899,764 21,450,479 5,293,279 1,956,013 6,884,630 315,363 1989 38,530,542 23,260,333 5,923,800 2,068,841 6,831,611 445,957 1990 46,679,434 26,242,545 9,096,703 2,393,399 8,577,038 369,749 1991 47,803,360 28,103,825 8,723,661 2,678,026 7,851,078 446,770 1992 50,621,219 28,814,779 11,039,902 2,641,366 7,733,714 391,458 1993 48,951,752 28,573,349 9,767,045 2,592,010 7,602,581 416,767 (1) Includes amoonts for (a) instructional services, (b) pupil support services, and (c) instruc- tional staff services. (2) Includes amounts for (a) business services, (b) plant services, (c) transportation services, and (d) central services. 

Fiscal Year Total Instructional Services Support Services Non~ instructional Services 1994 $49,810,851 $34,729A57 $15,036,294 $ 45,100 1995 51,685,871 35,603,373 15,644,136 438,362 1996 52,289,089 34,885,552 16,337,562 1,065,975 Note: Beginning in 1995, the School Board changed its method of clas- sifying expenditures to more accurately reflect the amount of expenditures for instructional services. Only 1995 financial infor- mation has been reclassified to conform to the 1996 presentation. 
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Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets - By Function 
Fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 

General Fixed Assets Function July 1, 1995 Additions Deductions Adjustments and General Fixed Assets 
Admmisuafive Insuucfional Maintenance 3,646,922 96,857,484 1,090,498 $101,594,904 

$ 115,173 4,128,715 792,179 $ 5,036,067 
$ 178,084 2,035,192 

Reclassifications June 30, 1996 (91,999) $ 3,492,012 192,483 8,946 (100,484 $ 2,222,222 $ 99,143,490 1,773.247 $104,408,749 
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Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures for General Bonded Debt to Total General Fund Expenditures Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total Total Debt General Fund Service Expenditures 
Ratio of Debt Service to General Expenditures (Percent) 1987 $1,295,000 1988 1,380,000 1989 1,410,000 1990 1,515,000 1991 1,630,000 1992 2,015,000 1993 2,060,000 1994 2,215,000 1995 2,375,000 1996 2,560,000 

$1,920,584 3,107,502 2,999,780 2,888,803 2,766,525 2,388,309 2,182,163 2,015,153 1,844,255 1,688,370 

$3,215,584 4,487,502 4,409,780 4,403,803 4,396,525 4,403,309 4,242,163 4,230,153 4,219,255 5,248,370 

$34,453,734 35,899,764 38,530,542 46,679,434 47,803,360 50,621,219 48,951,752 49,810,851 51,685,871 52,289,089 

9.3% 12.5% 11.4% 9.4% 9.2% 8.7% 8.7% 8.5% 8.2% 8.1% 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Comparative Schedule of General Fixed Assets - By Sources 
June 30, 1996 (With Comparative Totals for June 30, 1995) 

General fixed assets: Land Buildings and improvements Furniture and equipment Total general fixed assets InvesWnent in general fixed assets from: General operating revenues Capital projects revenues Special funds revenues School food service revenues School funds revenues Gifts Total investments in general fixed assets 



Fiscal Population Year (2 

Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana 
Demographic Statistics Last Ten Fiscal Years (1) 
Per Capita Median Income (2) A~e (2) Pubhc School Enrollment (3 Unemployment Rate (2) 

(1) (2) 
(3) 

1987 1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 

145,194 147,000 148,486 142,191 144,000 146,000 146,000 145,030 145,030 146,985 

$10,088 10,016 11,200 11,200 12,304 12,783 12,203 12,203 12,203 12,203 

28.2 28.3 28.7 28.9 29.2 30.2 30.2 30.2 30.2 30.2 

17,897 17,828 17,438 17,918 17,918 18,438 17,192 17,394 17,358 17,574 

9.80% 10.00% 9.80% 7.40% 6.90% 7.40% 6.80% 6.90% 7.00% 6.10% 
All information is parishwide except as noted. 1995 through 1996 estimates obtained from Northeast Louisiana University Economic Research Center. Prior year estimates obtained from Monroe Chamber of Commerce. School Board enrollment only. 
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community President Jack White presents Bob Bell with a token of appreciation during a School Board Meeting. 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Agency Funds Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities 

School Activity Funds Assets Cash and cash equivalents 

Fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 

Liabilities Amounts held for other organizations Migrant Funds of Other Parishes Assets Cash and cash equivalents 
Liabilities Amounts held for other organizations 

$ 1,180,032 $ 4,128,352 $ 3,853,209 $ 1,455,175 

Deferred Compensation Plan Assets Cash and cash equivalents $ 37,433 $ 94,592 $ 2,799 $ 129,226 Liabilities Amounts due employees for deferred compensation $ 37,433 $ 94,592 $ 2,799 $ 129 Totals - All Agency Funds Assets Cash and cash equivalents 
Liabilities Amounts held for other organizations Amounts due employees for deferred compensation 



State equalization is the funding formula from the state for school systems in Louisiana. The funding is based on a formula with many variables. It is normal for the funding from the state to change 1% or 2% each year. The change can be either positive or negative depending on the ehanges in the variables of the formula. The increase in sales tax is due to the passage of a new 1% sales tax in July 1995. Other state sources decreased because, in 1994-95, the State funded a one-time salary supplement for school employees. The amount received in 1995-96 for other state support is closer to the normal amount received in previous years, excluding 1994-95. Other local support increased because of the sale of natural resources located on School Board property. This will not occur every year. 
Expenditures Amount Percent In Thousands~ of Total 

Percentage Change From Prior Year 
Instructional services Support services Noninstructional services and other Debt service Total 

$49,544 20,639 6,451 4.695 
60.9% 25.4 7.9 5.8 
0.7% 5.5 9.3 .5 $81.329 100.0% 8.6 

1995-96 Expenditures 
Non- instructional services and other Debt service 6% 8% 

Support services 25% 

xnl 

Instructional services 61% 



Amount 
Percentage Change Percent From Revenues (In Thousands) of Total Prior Year Slate equalization Sales and use taxes Ad valorem taxes Federal grants Other state sources Other local support Cash payments for meals Earnings on deposits Other federal sources Total 

$ 40,920 13,694 11,112 8,683 2,552 1,455 1,434 720 359 

50.6% 16.9 13.7 10.7 3.2 1.8 1.8 .9 .4 $ 80,929 100.0% 

(1 2)% 56.0 4.3 4.3 (38.7) 170.2 (1.5) 12.2 (26.9) 5.8 



The School Board has three Agency Funds - School Activity, Migrant Funds of Other Parishes and Deferred Compensation Plan. The funds had additions of $4,324,036 and deductions of $3,957,100 during the year. The June 30, 1996 total of $1,584,401 is shown ~ a liability as it is an amount held for others, which are the individual schools which comprise our system and the part-time and substitute employees who participate in the School Board's Deferred Compensation Plan. The schedules below present a summary of revenues and expenditures of govern- mental funds (General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, and Debt Service Funds) for the year ended June 30, 1996 and the percentage increases (decreases) from the prior year. 
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activity within an individual fund. The School Board also maintains an encum- brance accounting system as one technique of accomplishing budgetary control. Encumbered amounts are reported as reservations of fund balance for subsequent year expenditures. As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report, the School Board continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management. General Governmental Function 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996, General Fund revenues and other sources exceeded expenditures and other uses by $55,320. This is the fourth consecutive year that the school system has shown an excess of revenues over expenditures. Prior to this, the School Board ran a $1.2 million excess of expenditures over revenues for the 1991-92 fiscal year. We feel that by closely monitoring our expenditures and the passage of a one-half cent sales tax for maintenance and operation, the school system has a solid financial base. The revenues of the General Fund decreased by $1,604,150 or 3% from $52,596,965 in 1994-95 to $50,992,815 in 1995-96. The decrease was due to a decrease in our MFP funding of $515,108 and the fact that in 1994-95, the state funded a one-time pay supplement totaling approximately $1.4 million. The decrease in these two areas was offset by a $210,003 increase in revenue from ad valorem taxes. The General Fund expenditures increased from $51,647,021 in the prior fiscal year to $52,289,089 for the current fiscal year, an increase of $642,068 or 1.2%. The majority of the increase is the result of construction projects in the General Fund amounting to $858,598 and the purchase of seven buses totaling $294,000. This increase was partially offset because salaries during the year were reduced as a result of the one-time salary supplement funded by the state in 1994-95, as previ- ously discussed. 
The General Fund other financing sources and uses had a net increase of $1,687,734. This increase was the result of accounting for the current year state minimum foundation program funding for the School Lunch Program of $732,188 as revenue in the School Lunch Fund and not as an operating transfer in as in prior year. Also, included as other financing sources is the sale of a school building for $950,672. The School Board has one Internal Service Fund - Self Insurance. This fund ended the fiscal year with a net loss of $213,766. This fund is funded through the General Fund. Retained earnings were $1,060,027 at June30, 1996. (See Risk Management discussion in this letter.) 



The Reporting Entity 
The Ouachita Parish School System constitutes the reporting entity. The Central Offtce, Media Center, Auxiliary Facilities and 31 school sites represent the compo- nents of the reporting entity. The basic criterion for defining the reporting entity is the School Board's financial accountability. 
Services Provided The School Board is a legislative body authorized to govern the public education system of the Parish of Ouachita, Louisiana, excluding the City of Monroe. It is the responsibility of the School Board to make public education available to the residents of Ouachita Parish. These services include providing instructional personnel, instructional materials, instructional facilities, food service facilities, administrative support, business services, system operations, plant maintenance and bus transportation. 
Internal Control Structure The management of the School Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining a system of internal accounting control. The objectives of a system of internal accounting control are to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that School Board policy, administrative procedures and accounting procedures are fully implemented and are being followed. In addition, internal accounting controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance regarding: (1) the safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and (2) the reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements and main- taining accountability for assets. 
All internal accounting control evaluations occur within the above framework. We believe the School Board's internal accounting controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of proper recording of financial transactions. 
Accounting System apxl Budgetary Control An explanation of the School Board's accounting and budgetary policies is con- tamed in the Notes to Combined Financial Statements. Explained in detail are the basis of accounting, fund structure and other significant information regarding accounting and budgetary policies. The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the School Board. Activities of the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, and Debt Service Funds are included in the annum appropriated budget. The level of budgetary control is established by function and line item 



OPSB 100 BRY STREET ' P. O. BOX 1642 " MONROE, LA 71210-1642 " PHONE (318) 388-2711 ~ FAX (318) 338-2221 OUACHITA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
November 15, 1996 
Members, Ouachita Parish School Board 100 Bry Street Monroe, Louisiana 71210 
Dear Board Members The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Ouachita Parish School Board (School Board) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 is hereby transmitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data, and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the Business Department of the School Board. We believe this report, as presented, is accurate in all material aspects, and that it is presented in a manner that fairly sets forth the results of operations and financial position of the School Board. Further, all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an adequate understanding of our System's financial affairs have been included. 
Reporting Standards This report was prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting princi- ples as established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) of the Financial Accounting Foundation. The GASB is the standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting standards. 
Report Organization The report consists of three sections: the Introductory Section, the Financial Sec- tion and the Statistical Section. The Introductory Section includes this and the pre- ceding letter of transmittal along with other miscellaneous data concerning the organization of the reporting entity. The Financial Section consists of both com- bined financial statements, which present an overview and broad perspective of the School Board as a whole, and more detailed combining and individual fund and account group statements and schedules. The Statistical Section includes data pre- pared from both accounting and nonaccounting sources for the purpose of reflect- ing financial trends and fiscal capacity of the School Board, as well as other social and economic information. 
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OPSB 100 8RY STREET ~ E O. BOX 1642 ' MONROE. LA 71210-1642 ~ PHONE (318) 388-2711 ~ FAX (318) 338-2221 OUACHITA PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
November 15, 1996 
Members, Ouachita Parish School Board 100 Bry Street Monroe, Louisiana 71210 
Dear Board Members: The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Ouachita Parish School Board (School Board) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 is presented herewith. This fmancial report represents a comprehensive portrait of the School Board's fmancial condition. In addition, it presents the results of operations for the year ended June 30, 1996 and other significant data. The report is structured in such a manner as to be both a useful management instrument and an informative public document. The School Board has a comprehensive set of policies and procedures dealing with our fiscal operation. In addition, we utilize comprehensive budgetary controls and systemwide internal control activities. The results of these efforts are reflected in our Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. The outcome of this combination is an effective internal management control system. 
The Business Department is to be complimented for the preparation of this excel- lent report. We are pleased to inform you that for the previous eight years our report was awarded both a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting by the Government Finance Officers Association and a Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting from the Association of School Business Offi- cials International. Copies of this report will be distributed to local businesses, financial institutions and community leaders. 
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Respectfully submitted 
Superintendent 
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Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Special Revenue Fund - Utility Reimbursement Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (GAAP Basis) 

Revenues Local sources l~.arnings on deposits State and federal sources Other federal support Total revenues 
Fund balance at beginning of year Fund balance at end of year 

Fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 

52 

Variance Favorable Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 
5,000 $ 6,049 $ 1,049 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Schedule of General Fixed Assets - By Function 
June 30, 1996 
Buildings and Function Land Im Furniture and vements Equipment Total Administrative Instructional Maintenance Total general fixed assets allocated to functions 

$ 10,250 $ 908,691 $ 2,573,071 $ 3,492,012 1,211,908 84,126,812 13,804,770 99,143A90 9,208 998,837 765,202 1.773,247 $ 1,231,366 $ 86,034,340 $ 17,143,043 $ 104,408,749 
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~RNST & YOUNG LLP I 4200 One Shell Square 701 Povdras Street New Odeans Louisiana 70139-9869 

Report of Independent Auditors on Compliance--Based on an Audit of General Purpose Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards 
The Ouachita Parish School Board 
We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the Ouachita Parish School Board (School Board) as of and for the year ended June 30, 1996, and have issued our report thereon dated November 15, 1996. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement. 
Compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to the School Board is the responsibility of the School Board's management. As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of material mis- statement, we performed tests of the School Board's compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants. However, the objective of our audit of the gen- eral purpose financial statements was not to provide an opinion on overall compliance with such provisions. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported herein under Government Auditing Standards. This report is intended for the information of the School Board, management, the Louisi- ana Department of Education and the federal grantor agencies identified in the schedule of federal financial assistance for the year ended June 30, 1996. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited, 
November 15, 1996 
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The Ouachita Parish School Board 

~ 4200 One Shell Square 701 Poydras Slreel New Orleans Louisiana 70139 9869 

In planning and pertbrming our audit of the general purpose financial statements of the Ouachita Parish School Board (School Board) as of and for the year ended June 30, 1996, we considered its internal control structure to determine our auditing procexlures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the general purpose financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control structure. However, the following matters came to our attention that we believe merit your consideration. 
Accounting Policies and Procedures Presently, the business department maintains no formal organized documentation of the accounting policies and procedures for its significant accounting applications. We encour- age the School Board to develop such documentation. We believe the documentation process will aid the business department as it continues to challenge its internal control system. Once developed, the manual will be an important part of the internal control system, as well as a useful training tool. During the course of our audit, we noted the following items for which the business department should establish policies. Bank reconciliations - Proper bank reconciliations are a key to maintaining ade- quate control over both cash receipts and disbursements. During much of the year, we noted that bank reconciliations were not being performed completely or in a timely manner. We noted a similar instance in our audit of the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 1995. We recommend the business department adopt a poficy of having all bank reconciliations performed by a certain time after receiving the hank statement, and place a high priority on complying with that policy. Accounting for contingencies - Generally accepted accounting principles require the School Board to record a loss contingency (lawsuits, workers' compensation claims, etc.) in the period the loss is considered probable and its amount can be reasonably estimated. During our review of the correspondence from the School Board's attorney, we noted two such loss contingencies which had not been given proper accounting recognition. We noted a similar instance in our audit of the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 1995. We recommend the business department establish a procedure to review the status of lawsuits and workers' 
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Letter to Management Ouachita Parish School Board Year ended June 30, 1996 
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Letter to Management Ouachita Parish School Board Year ended June 30, 1996 

.Jnoer provisions of state law, thts report is a public document. A copy of the report has .bee,1 submit- ted to the audited, or re.viewed, entity and other a;pro~riat~, public officials. The report is availab!e for public ic,~pection at the Baton Rouge office of the Les. i$1ative Audi- tor and, where appropriate, at the office of the parish clerk of court. ~o.lease Date 
=--JJ ERNST & YOUNG Zte 



-.~ ERNST& YOUNG LLP ~ 4200 One Shell Square 701 Poydras Street New Orleans Louisiana 70139-9869 

Report of Independent Auditors on Compliance With the General Requirements Applicable to Federal Financial Assistance Programs 
The Ouachita Parish School Board 
We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the Ouachita Parish School Board (School Board) as of and for the year ended June 30, 1996, and have issued our report thereon dated November 15, 1996. We have applied procedures to test the School Board's compliance with the following requirements applicable to each of its federal financial assistance programs, which are identified in the Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance, for the year ended June 30, 1996: political activity, Davis-Bacon Act, civil rights, cash management, relocation assis- tance, federal financial reports, Drug-Free Workplace Act, allowable costs/cost principles, and administrative requirements. 
Our procedures were limited to the applicable procedures described in the Office of Man- agement and Budget's Compliance Supplement for Single Audits of State and Local Gov- ermnents. Our procedures were substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion on the Ouachita Parish School Board's compliance with the requirements listed in the preceding paragraph. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
With respect to the items tested, the results of those procedures disclosed no material instances of noncompliance with the requirements listed in the preceding paragraph. With respect to items not tested, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the School Board had not complied, in all material respects, with those requirements. 
This report is intended for the information of the School Board, management, the Louisi- ana Department of Education and the federal grantor agencies identified in the schedule of federal financial assistance for the year ended June 30, 1996. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 
November 15, 1996 ~ ~ ~LLP 



 
EeNsr & YOUNG LLP ~ 4200 One Shell Square 701 Poydras Street New Orleans louisiana 70139-9869 

Report of Independent Auditors on Compliance With Specific Requirements Applicable to Major Federal Financial Assistance Programs The Ouachita Parish School Board We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the Ouachita Parish School Board (School Board) as of and for the year ended June 30, 1996, and have issued our report thereon dated November 15, 1996. We also have audited the School Board's compliance with the requirements governing types of services allowed or unaliowed; eligibility; matching, level of effort, or earmarking; reporting; assessment of needs; claims for advances and reimbursements; and amounts claimed or used for matching that are applicable to each of its major federal financial assistance programs, which are identified in the accompanying Schedule of Federal Finan- cial Assistance, for the year ended June 30, 1996. The management of the School Board is responsible for the School Board's compliance with those requirements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance with those requirements based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit of compliance with those requirements in accordance with gener- ally accepted auditing standards; Govermnent Auditing Standards, issued by the Comp- troller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-128, Audits of State and Local Governments. Those standards and OMB Circular A-128 require that we plan and per- form the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the requirements referred to above occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the School Board's compliance with those requirements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
In our opinion, the School Board complied in all material respects with the requirements governing types of services allowed or unaliowed; eligibility; matching, level of effort, or earmarking; reporting; assessment of needs; claims for advances and reimbursements; and amounts claimed or used for matching that are applicable to each of its major federal financial assistance programs for the year ended June 30, 1996. '/'his report is intended for the information of the School Board, management, the Louisi- ana Department of Education and the federal grantor agencies identified in the schedule of federal fmancial assistance for the year ended June 30, 1996. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 
November 15,1996 13 



advances and reimbursements and amounts claimed or used for matching that are applica- ble to each of the School Board's major federal financial assistance programs, which are identified in the accompanying Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance. Our procedures were less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on these internal control structure policies and procedures. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
Our consideration of the internal control structure policies and procedures used in admin- istering iederal financial assistance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control structure that might be material weaknesses under standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control structure elements does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with laws and regula- tions that would be material to a federal financial assistance program may occur and not be detected within a tin,ely period by employees in the normal course of perforn~ng their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control structure and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses as defined above. However, we noted certain matters involving the internal control structure and its opera- tion that we have reported to the management of the School Board in a separate letter dated November 15, 1996. This report is intended for the information of the School Board, management, the Louisi- ana Department of Education and the federal grantor agencies identified in the schedule of federal financial assistance for the year ended June 30, 1996. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 
November 15. 1996 

LLP 



preparation of general purpose financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, and that federal financial assistance programs are managed in com- pfiance with applicable laws and regulations. Because of inherent limitations in any internal control structure, errors, irregularities, or instances of noncompliance may nevertheless occur anti not be detected. Also, projection of any evaluation of the structure to future periods is subject to the risk that procedures may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the effectiveness of the design and operation of policies and proce- dures may deteriorate. 
For the purpose of this report, we have classified the significant internal control structure policies and procedures used in administering federal financial assistance programs in the following categories: 
Cash Receipts Purchasing Accounts Payable 

Political Activity Davis-Bacon Act Civil Rights Cash Management Relocation Assistance 

Accounting Control Cash Disbursements Payroll 
Administrative Controls 

Types of Services Eligibility Matching Level of Effort Special Requirements 

General Federal Financial Reports Allowable Costs/Cost Principles Drug-Free Workplace Act Administrative Requirements 
Specific Reporting Cost Allocation Claims for Advances and Reimbursements For all the internal control structure categories listed above, we obtained an understanding of the design of relevant policies and procedures and determined whether they have been placed in operation, and we assessed control risk. During the year ended June 30, 1996, the School Board expended 85% of its total federal financial assistance under major federal financial assistance programs. 
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Report of Independent Auditors on Internal Control Structure Applicable to Federal Financial Assistance Programs 
The Ouachita Parish School Board 
We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the Ouachita Parish School Board (School Board) as of and for the year ended June 30, 1996, and have issued our reporl thereon dated November 15, 1996. We have also audited the School Board's compliance with requirements applicable to major federal financial assistance programs and have issued our report thereon dated November 15, 1996. We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; Gov- ernment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-128, Audits of State and Local Governments. Those standards and OMB Circular A-128 require that we plan and per- form the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement and about whether the School Board com- plied with laws and regulations, noncompliance with which would be material to a major federal financial assistance program. In planning and performing our audits for the year ended June 30, 1996, we considered the School Board's internal control structure in order to determine our auditing proce- dures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the general purpose financial state- ments of the School Board and on its compliance with requirements applicable to major programs and to report on the internal control structure in accordance with OMB A-128. This report addresses our consideration of internal control structure policies and proce- dures relevant to compliance with requirements applicable to federal financial assistance programs. We have addressed internal control structure policies and procedures relevant to our audit of the general purpose financial statements in a separate report dated November 15, 1996. The management of the School Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure. In fulfdliug this responsibility, estimates and judgments by man- agement are required to assess the expected benefits and related costs of internal control structure policies and procedures. The objectives of an internal control structure are to provide management with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are safe- guarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, that transactions are executed in accordance with management's authorization and recorded properly to permit the 



Ouachita Parish School Board 
Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance (continued) Year ended June 30, 1996 
Federal CFDA Grant Title Number Pass-Through Program Grant Number Disbursements Totals U. S. Department of Agriculture Passed through State Department of Education: School Breakfast/Lunch Program ** 10.553 Total passed through State Department of Education Total Federal Financial Assislance 

*Denotes major federal financial assistance program 

$ 2,485,906 $ 2,485,906* 2,485,906 $ 8,492,790 
**In addition to federal assistance received above, the Ouachita Parish School Board disbursed $376,465 of commodities provided by the U. S. Department of Agriculture. 



Ouachita Parish School Board Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance (continued) 
Year ended June 30, 1996 
Federal CFDA Grant Title Number Pass-Through Program Grant Number Disbursements Totals U. S. Department of Education (continued) Starting Points 93.575 

Goals 2000 - Improvement Goals 20(XI - Planning Goals 2000 - NLEC Goals 2000 - Berry 
Total passed through State Department of Education U. S. Department of Defense Direct li'om U. S. Department of Defense: ROTC Total direct from U. S. Deparlment of Defense 
U. S. Department of Health and Human Service Passed through State Department of Social Services: Project Independence 93.561 Total passed through State Department of Social Services 
*Denotes major federal financial assistance program 

$ 44,887 $ 44,887 
37,060 18,536 2,503 4,677 162,776 
5,773,894 

107,943 107,943 
107,943 

125,047 125.047 
125,047 



Ouachita Parish School Board Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance (continued) 

Grant Title 
Year ended June 30, 1996 
Federal CFDA Number Pass-Through Grant Number Program Disbursements Totals 

U. S. Department of Education (conlinued) Sp. Ed. 89-313, 95 84.009A Sp. Ed. 89-313, 94 84.009 Sp. Ed. 89-313, 93 84.009 Sp. Ed. 89-313, 92 84.009 EESA Title II 96 EESA Title II CO 95 EESA Title II 95 EESA Title II 94 
84 84 84 84 
64 64 64 64 Drug Free Education 96 84.186 Drug Free Education CO 96 84.186 Drug Free Education 95 84.186 Drug Free Education CO 95 84.186 Drug Free Education 92 84.186 

Family Advocate Family Advocate Family Advocate Infant 95 Infant Summer Infant/Toddler 92 Adult - GM Grant 96 Adult Educ. ABE Adult - GM Grant 95 Adult - GM Grant 94 Vocational Even Start Even Start Even Start 

84.181 84.181 84.181 84.181 84.181 84,181 84.002 84.002 84.002 84.002 84.048 84.213 84.213 84.213 84.196 

94-C313-37 94-L313-37 93-L313-37 92-L313-37 28-96-5037-H 28-94-5037-II CO 28-95-5037-H 28-94-5037-H 28-96-7037-D 28-95-7037-DCO96 28-95-7037-D 28-94-7037-DCO 28-92-7037-D 
95-CIT-37 94-CIT-37 93-CIT-37 94-CIT3-37 93-CIT3-37 91-ITC-37 

96-ES-37 95-ES-37 94-ESFL 
*Denotes major federal financial assistance program 

404 396 28 321 1,149 
68,234 723 9,493 67 78,517 81,779 8,998 9,394 6,211 306 106,688 
54,501 33,336 1,217 17,498 616 129 107,297 
40,459 35,648 32,337 545 79.927 108,989 79,927 
685,828 144,195 659 830,682* 55,386 



(1) Information provided by each governmental unit on general obligation debt only (2) Debt applicable to the School Board. 

80 



 
ERNST& YOUNG LLP ~ 4200 One Shell Square 701 Poydras Street New Odeans Louisiana 70139-9869 

Report of Independent Auditors on Supplementary Information--Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance 
The Ouachita Parish School Board 
We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the Ouachita Parish School Board (School Board) as of and for the year ended June 30, 1996 and have issued our report thereon dated November 15, 1996. These general purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the School Board's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose financial statements based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclo- sures in the general purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have issued a report dated November 15, 1996 on our consideration of the School Board's internal control and a report dated November 15, 1996 on its compliance with applicable laws and regulations. Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose finan- cial statements of the School Board, taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of fed- eral financial assistance is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the general purpose financial statements. The information in that schedule has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects in rela- tion to the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole. 
November 15, 1996 ~:x4n~ ~ ~LLP 
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Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
Fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 
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Our consideration of internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in internal control that might be material weaknesses under standards established by the American Institute of Ce~tiffed Public Accountants. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that errors or irregularities in amounts thal would be material in relation to the general purpose fmancial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control structure and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses as defined above. However, we noted other matters involving internal control and its operation that we have reported to the management of the School Board in a separate letter dated November 15, 1996. This report is intended for the information of the School Board, management, the Louisi- ana Department of Education and the federal grantor agencies identified in the schedule of federal financial assistance for the year ended June 30, 1996. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 
November 15, 1996 
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Report of Independent Auditors on Internal Control --Based on an Audit of General Purpose Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards 
The Ouachita Parish School Board 
We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the Ouachita Parish School Board (School Board) as of and for the year ended June 30, 1996, and have issued our report thereon dated November 15, 1996. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement. The management of the School Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining intern',d control. In fulfilling this responsibility, estimates and judgments by management are required to assess the expected benefits and related costs of internal control policies and procedures. The objectives of internal control are to provide management with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, and that transactions are executed in accordance with management's authorization and recorded properly to permit the preparation of general purpose financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Because of inherent limitations in any internal control, errors or irregularities may nevertheless occur and not be detected. Also, projection of any evaluation of internal control to future periods is subject to the risk that procedures may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the effectiveness of the design and operation of policies and procedures may deteriorate. 
In planning and performing our audit of the general purpose financial statements of the School Board for the year ended June 30, 1996, we obtained an understanding of internal control. With respect to internal control, we obtained an understanding of the design of relevant policies and procedures and whether they have been placed in operation, and we assessed control risk in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the general purpose financial statements and not to provide an opinion on internal control. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 

2 
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Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana 
Miscellaneous Statistical Data School Board Members' Compensation 
June 30, 1996 

The schedule of compensation paid to School Board members was prepared in compliance with House Concurrent Resolution No. 54 of the 1979 session of the Louisiana Legislature. The compensation of the School Board members is included in the general administration expen- ditures of the General Fund. In accordance with Louisiana Revised Statute 17:56, the School Board members have elected the monthly payment method of compensation. Under this method, the members of the School Board received $800 per month. Additionally, the president received $1 (X) per month for exercising the duties of his office. 
Board Member Amount Mr. Jack White, President Mr. Greg H. Manley, Vice President Mr. Jerry R. Hicks Mr. Scott Robinson Rev. John Russell Mr. A, R. "Red" Sims Mr. Carey Walker 

$ 10,800 9,600 9,600 9,600 9,600 9,600 9,600 $ 68,400 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Miscellaneous Statistical Data 

Year of'Incorporation Form of Government Area of Parish Regular School Days Number of Schools: K-5 K-6 K-8 Middle School (6-8 only) Junior High (7-8 only) High School (7-12 only) High School - Alternative (7-12 only) High School (9-12 only) Total Enrollment (Public School Only): Preschool Kindergarten Grades 1-5 Grades 6-8 Grades 9-12 Special Education (Self-Contained Only) Special Education (Preschool) Total 

June30,1996 
1892 President/School Board 643 Square Miles 180 

227 1,491 7,018 3,916 4,339 489 94 



Tax 

Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Parish of Ouachita Principal Taxpayers 
June 30, 1996 

1996 Assessed of Business Valuation 
Percentage of Total Assessed 

Riverwood International Corp Louisiana Power & Light South Central Bell State Farm Koch Nitrogen Central Bank General Motors - Fisher Guide North Monroe Hospital Premier Bank Bancroft Paper 

Paper Mill Electric & Gas Utility Telephone Utility Insurance Chemical Products Financial Services Auto Parts Assembly Medical Financial Services Paper Products 
Source: Ouachita Parish Assessor's Office. 

84 

$ 36,366,740 28,927,640 17,358,400 15,186,476 9,162,669 9,025,186 5,859,548 5,015,366 3,253,007 

Valnation 
6.34% 5.04 3.02 2.65 1.60 1.57 1.02 .87 .57 3,094,013 .54 $133,249,045 23.22% 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Property Value, Construction and Bank Deposits Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Eslimated Actual Fiscal Property Commercial Residential Construction Number Construction Number Year Values of Permits Value of Permits Value Bank Deposits Thousands 1987 $3,234,143,409 175 1988 3,290,618,000 165 1989 3,393,159,364 163 1990 3,527,974,736 83 1991 3,571,342,555 23 1992 3,588,339,191 65 1993 3,567,894,318 137 1994 3,674,213,091 128 1995 3,779,168,809 77 1996 3,916,987,209 137 

All information parishwide. 

$23,000,000 516 22,500,000 388 26,500,000 385 8,200,000 215 6,500,000 130 6,200,000 190 12,000,000 380 20,800,000 411 8,162,044 270 22,296,836 441 

$38,000,000 27,000,000 24,500,000 16,500,000 9,800,000 16,000,000 38,000,000 40,400,000 26,358,400 41,914,542 
Source: Northeast Louisiana University Economic Research Center 

$1,650,000 1,785,000 1,800,000 1,817,000 1,165,000 1,317,000 1,423,000 1,354,000 1,345,431 1,346,000 



Ouachita Parish School Board 
Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance 
Year ended June 30. 1996 
Federal CFDA Pass-Through Grant Title Number Grant Number Disbursements Program Totals U. S. Department of Education Passed through State Department of Education: Title VI 96 Chapter II CO 96 Chapter II 95 Chapter II 94 Chapter II CO 95 Title 1 96 Title I CO 96 Chapter 1 95 Chapter I CO 95 Chapter 1 94 Chapter 1 Capital Outlay School Wide Planning 

Migrant 96 Migrant 95 IDEA-B,96 IDEA-B,95 IDEA-B, 94 IDEA-B, 93 IDEA-B.92 
Preschool Coordinator 96 Preschool Coordinator 95 Preschool Coordinator 94 Preschool 94-142, 96 Preschool 94-142, 95 Preschool 94-142, 94 Preschool 94-142, 93 Preschool 94-142, CO 94 

84.151 84.151 84.151 84.151 84.151 
84.010 84.010 84.010 84.010 84.010 84.010 84.010 84.011 84.011 
84.027 84.027 84.027 84.027 84.027 84.173 84.173 84.173 84.173 84.173 84.173 84.173 84.173 

28-96-0037-6 28-95-0037-2 CO 96 28-95-0037-2 28-94-0037-2 28-94-0037-CO 95 
96-027-37 95-064-37-CO96 95-064-37 94-055-37 CO 95 94-055-37 
FY-96-M-28-37-1 FY-95-M-28-37-1 96-FT-37 95-FT-37 94-FT-37 93-FT-37 92-FT-37 
96-PC-37 95-PC-37 94-PC-37 96-PF-37 95-PF-37 94-PF-37 93-PF-37 93-CPF-37 *Denotes major federal financial assistance program 

$ 82,613 10,866 13,051 34 213 2,601,518 133,165 469,036 20,774 10,189 73,047 8,800 
82,595 18,497 
365,302 173,117 3,576 669 755 51,791 36,337 935 21,457 17,306 1,946 5 2 

$ 106,777 

3,316,529" 
101,092 

543,419" 

129,779 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Fiduciary Fund Type Agency Funds June 30, 1996 
Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the School Board in a trust or agency capacity. School Activity Funds 
The activities of the various individual school accounts are accounted for in the School Activity Funds. While the funds are under the supervision of the School Board, these funds belong to the individual schools or their student bodies and are not available for use by the School Board. 
Migrant Education Funds of Other Parishes The Migrant Education Funds are federally funded programs to locate and identify migrant chil- dren and to provide a program for migratory children of limited English proficiency. Services include instructional and social services for the students. The School Board serves as a cash con- duit for four other parishes who operate similar Migrant Education programs. Deferred Compensation Plan The School Board has adopted a deferred compensation plan for part-time and substitute employ- ees under the provision of Internal Revenue Service Code 457 (Deferred Compensation Plan). The Deferred Compensation Plan replaces social security for covered employees. Employees contribute 7.5% of their compensation to the Deferred Compensation Plan. The School Board does not contribute to the Deferred Compensation Plan. 
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Ouachita Parish School Board meetings include students, parents, teachers, and community leaders. The pledge is always led by students and different ministers offer the invocation. Special recognitions and pre- sentations of accolades precede each business session. 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana 
Special Revenue Fund - State Grants Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (GAAP Basis) 

Revenues Local sources: Earnings on deposits State sources: Other state support Total revenues 

Fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 

Expenditures Instructional services: Special education programs Special programs Other fllst~ctional programs Adult/continuing education Support services: Instructional staff services Business services Plant services Student transportation services Total expenditures Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures Other financing sources Operating transfer in Total other financing sources Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources ove~ (unde0 expenditures and other uses 
Fund balance at beginning of year Fund balance at end of year 

Variance Favorable Budget Actual (Unfavorable 

104,290 52,459 285,896 
105,680 5,051 17,811 4.426 

75,342 52,245 275,081 23,319 119,399 7,103 19,424 9,661 

28,948 214 10,815 (23,319) (13,719) (2,052) (1,613) (5,235) 575,613 581,574 (5,961 (40,885) 930 41,815 
27,939 27,939 



 



Assets Cash and cash equivalents Receivables Total assets 
Liabilities and fund balances Liabilities: Amounts held for others Total liabilities 

Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Agency Funds Combining Balance Sheet June 30, 1996 (With Comparative Totals for June 30, 1995) 

Fund balances: Unreserved. undesignated Total fund balances Total liabilities and fund balances 

Migrant School Funds of Deferred Activity Other Compensation Total 

$ 1,455,175 $ $ 129,226 1,455,175 - 129,226 lr584~401 $ 1,217,465 1,584,401 1,217,465 
$ 1,455,175 $ - $ 129,226 $ 1~584~401 $ 1,217,465 
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Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Debt Service Fund - West Ouachita Bond Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (GAAP Basis 

Revenues Local sources: Ad valorem taxes Earnings on deposits Total revenues 

Fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 

Expenditures General administration Debt service: Principa/ Interest Total expenditures Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 
Fund balance at beginning of year Fund balance at end of year 

Variance Favorable 

1,000 98,702 (97,702) 1,440,000 1,440,000 



ond in Fund Balance - 

Variance Favorable Actual (Unfavorable 
1,362,633 $ 142,633 9,537 1,372,170 (15,463 127,170 
41,287 (39,037) 1,120,000 199,360 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana 
Debt Service Funds Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
Fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 (With Comparative Totals for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1995) 

Revenues Local sources: Ad valorem taxes Earnings on deposits Total revenues Expenditures General administration Debt service: Principal lnterest Total expenditures Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 
Fund balances at beginning of year Fund balances at end of year 

East Ouaehita Bond West Ouaehita Bond Total 1996 1995 
1,372,170 3,283,508 4,655,678 4,457,239 
41,287 98,702 139,989 135,385 1,120,000 1,440,000 2,560,000 2,375,000 



Assets Cash and cash equivalents Receivables Tota~ assets 

Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Debt Service Funds Combining Balance Sheet June 30, 1996 (With Comparative Totals for June 30, 1995) 

Liabilities and fund balances Liabilities: Due to other funds Total liabilities Fund balances: Reserved for debt service Total fund balances Total liabilities and fund balances 

East West Ouaehita Ouachita Total 

-$ 94 94 94 $ 94 94 94 
413,817 2,439,981 2,853,798 2,586,479 413,817 2,439,981 798 2,586,479 $ 2,586,573 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Debt Service Funds 
June 30, 1996 

The Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the pay- ment of, general long-term debt principal, interest and related costs. A separate Debt Service Fund is maintained for each bond issue currently outstanding. East Ouachita Bond Redemption Fund This fund is used to account for monies from bonds issued in 1978 for the purpose of constructing new buildings and improving existing buildings in East Ouachita Parish. This indebtedness is financed by a special property tax levied on property in the East Ouachita Parish School District. West Ouachita Bond Redemption Fund This fund is used to account for monies from bonds issued in 1986 for the purpose of constructing new buildings and improving existing buildings in West Ouachita Parish and bonds issued in 1991 to advance refund $20,965,000 of the Series 1986 Bonds. This indebtedness is financed by a spe- ci',d property tax levied on property in the West Ouachita Parish School District. 



 



Ouachita Parish School Board Monroe, Louisiana Special Revenue Fund - Local Grants Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (GAAP Basis) 

Revenues Local sources: Earnings on deposits Other Total revenues 
Expenditures Support services: Regular programs Special education programs Support services: Instructional staff services Other 

Fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 

Total expenditures Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures Fund balance at beginning of year Fund balance at end of year 

Variance Favorable 

1,200 53,349 1,200 53,259 90 10,000 6,702 3,298 
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